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About Intel 

t has been 25 years since Intel introduced the world's first microprocessor, 
making technological history. The computer revolution that this technology 

enabled has changed the world. Today, Intel supplies the computing industry 
with the chips, boards, systems and software that are the "ingredients" of 
computer architecture. These products are used by industry members to create 
advanced computing systems. Intel's mission is to be the preeminent building 
block supplier to the new computing industry worldwide. 

Processor products. Microprocessors, also called central processing units 
(CPUs) or chips, are frequently described as the "brains" of a computer, 
because they control the central processing of data in personal computers 
(PCs) and other computers. Chipsets perform essential logic functions sur­
rounding the CPU in computers based on Intel architecture processors. 
Motherboards combine Intel microprocessors and chipsets to form the basic 
subsystem of a PC or server. 

Networking and communications products enhance the capabilities of 
PC systems and networks, and make them easier to use and manage. These 
products are sold through reseller, retail and original equipment manufacturer 
(OEM) channels. 

Computer enhancement products. Flash lI1ell101Y provides easily repro­
grammable memory for computers, mobile phones and many other products. 
Flash memory has the advantage of retaining data when the unit's power is 
turned off. Embedded control chips are designed to perform specific functions in 
products such as automobile engine and braking systems. hard disk drives. laser 
printers, input/output control modules. cellular phones and home appliances. 

Original equipment manufacturers of computer systems and peripherals. 
PC users. who buy Intel's PC enhancements. business communications 
products and networking products through resell cr. retail and OEM channels. 
Other manufacturers. including makers of a wide range of industrial and 
telecommunications equipment. 
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","l Teare pleased 10 report another 
VVoutstanding year at Intel. RC\cnues 
totaled $20.8 billion. up 29 percent from 
S16.2 billion in 1995. Earnings per share 
rose 44 perccnt over last year. to S5.81. 

Our performance in 1996 was drivcn 
by strong demand for our Pentium ' 
and Pentium' Pro processors. which 
pro\ide the brains for computers from 
servers to home Pes. We expanded the 
Pt-ntium processor r.1mily in 1996 with 
a new 200-MHz Pentium processor 
and shifted the entry-level chip to Ihe 
120- lind 13)-Mllz I1:!n tium processors. 

We continued to invcst hcavily in the 
manufacturing (ilcililies that allow us 
to delivcr more powerful microproces­
sors while keeping 
PC syslem COSb 
low. In 1996. we 
announced plans 
for two new man­
ufaclUring siles: a 
nev. Slatc-of·the­
art wafer fab in 
Fort Wooh. Texas. 
and an assembly and lest facility in San 
Jose, Costa Rica. 

Driving connecte d PC 
growth. About 70 million Pes 
.... ere sold around the world in 1996. 
and a substantllli majority of those 
Pes contained Intel rntcroproccsSOTS. 
This year. one trend in particular has 
driven this PC market growth: the 
spread of networked computmg via the 
popularily of the Internet and internat 
corporate networks. In fact. 1996 was 
the year in .... hieh PC manufacturers 
and users around the world embraced 
the concept that computmg is, by defi· 
nition, networked. 

R&D la b to the computing 
Indus try. We at Intel ha\e long 
known that our growth depends on the 
continued c.--:pansion of the PC plalform's 
capabilities. The more users demand of 
Pes. the more IXJy,er will be reqUired to 
drive them. and the more microproces-

Gorebn E. Moore 
elra/rMUII 

To our stockholders 

sors will be sold. In response. we have 
exp..1nded Intel's role in the computing 
industry over the last several years. 
Acting as a sort of R&D lab and strategic 
think tank to the industry. we work with 
PC makers. software ocwlopcrs and PC 
users to understand their future necds 
and wishes. and work intensely with 
industry leaders to d..:vclop products or 
specifications that mcct those nCl.'{ls. 

In 1996. we focused on two key 
initiatives that aim 10 sol\'e persistent 
problcms in computing and embody 
the exciling potcntial ofa world of 

networked computers; 
connected CD-ROMs and down-the· 
wire manageability. 

· ConnCi: lcd C O- RO.'\ ls: Users have 
long been frustrated by the snail·li ke 
bandwidth pcrfonnance oftoday's 
modcm-and-phone-tine Internet con­
nections. We have worked with soft­
ware developers to create a solulion­
connected CD-ROM software. 

Thc bandwidth-hungry. multimedia 
environment and content of the pro­
gram are delivercd on a CD-ROM. 
These "hybrid applications"1ink to the 
Internet to prOYide updatcd content and 
real-time interaction with other users. 
We believe that connected PC software 
is the wave ofthc future for home Pes. 

.I.)(n\ n-I he-" in" managt'abilil): 
Expansion of internal business PC net­
works has been hindered by the high 
COStS of establishing. maintaining and 
updating such networks. Indeed nel­
work management cOStS ha"e raised 
Ihe total cost of ownership of a single 
connected business PC to more than 

Andrew S. GTO\e 
p". . .,delll Ulld Chirf f:.".trcum ... Of/ln'r 

.. 

S7,000 annually. according 10 Gartner 
Group. a research and consulting finn. 

To address this serious issue. we 
launched our Wired for Managemelll 
initiati\-c. aimed al reducing Ihc total 
cost of ownership of business PCs. We 
and other industry leaders arc delivering 
immediate hardwllre and software solu­
tions to make it easier to install and 
maintain PC networks without sacri· 
ficing performance. 

Taking responsibility for 
our own growth. We know wc 
can't wait for growth to come to us. We 
are responsible for our own future and 

work to make 
it as succcssful 
as possible by 
remo\ ing road· 
blocks to PC 
platform growth. 
developing pref­
erence for the 
Intel Inside' 

emcrging PC markets around the 
world. Together. these strategies build 
value for our stockholders. which is, 
aftcr all. our most important goal. 

This has been an outstanding year. 
We ha\'e confidence in our strategies 
and capabilities. and we are delennined 
to do what we can to continue expand­
ing dcvelopments in computing and 
telecommunications. 

As part of our continuous evolution 
oflnlel"s managemcnlteam. in January 
1997 we announccd a realignment of 
titles and responsibilities in the Exec­
uti\e Office. Effective May 21, 1997. 
Craig Barrett becomes president and 
continues as chief operating officer. 
Andy Grove becomes chainnan and 
continues as chief executi\ e officer. 
Gordon ~ Ioore becomes chainnan 
emeritus and continues, with Craig 
and Andy. to be part of the E.--:ccuti\e 
OfflCC. Together. we look forv.'3fd to the 
continuing opportunities and challenges 
of our business in the coming year. 

C.u..<"?_ is c ....... IT 
Craig R. Barrett 

ExrCllm .. '1"" P"'siuml ulIl1 CI .. ·rr~/'f1I'"fl Officrr 
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Highlights of 1996 
... 

A revolution in progress 
Twenry-five years ago, we introduced the 

world's first commercia l microprocessor. 
thc 4004. The microprocessor's invention rev­

olUlioni7.cd computing and changed forever 

the way people work. learn and communicate. 

We were proud this year when former Intel 

engineers and microprocessor co-inventors 

(left to right) Stan Mazor, Federico faggin 
and Ted I loff were inducted into the Inventors 

Hall of Fame for this remarkable contribution 

to technology and society. 

New territory for our smartest chip 
Our powerhousc Pentium · Pro processors 

were at the core of the growing PC server 
market segment this year. In a new breed of 

scalable servers, sc\eral Pentium Pro chips are 

combined providing power to connect desktop 
systems or run large applications more effec­

tively than traditional single-chip SClyers. This 

capability is moving the Intel arehitecture up 

into the mid-range market segment for servers 
and workstations. competing with traditionally 

more expensive. proprietary systems. 

\~ 
f ­r-' r-e-

The best of the Web-without the wait 
I n July. Intel gathered more than 1.000 soft­

ware. communications and entertainment 

industry representatives to share our vision 

of the most exci ting new multimedia sol ut ion: 

connccted e l>-ROMs. For example, in MOl/opoly· 

II/feme/ire, a CD-ROM generates an exciting 
animated 3D game world while players from 
around the globe challenge each o ther over the 
progmm's Internet link. This and other connected 

C D-ROMs provide pCTwcrful solutions to the 

bandwidth-clogging frustrations of the World 
Wide Web. 

Multimedia goes to HollYlNood 
I n 1996 \\e worked with Crc:lIive Anists 

Agency (CAA), one of Hollywood's lead­

ing literary and talcnt agencies. to expose 

actors. directors, writers and musicians to the 

potential of ne\\ media on networked PCs. 

Our new CAA Intcl Media Lab in I3c\erly 

Hills, California. is a state-of-the-an multi­

media facil ity designed to stimulate the devel­

opment of compelling IlCW electronic coment. 

such as broadcast-qual ity enlenainmcnt and 
interactive programs. 



. ." 

Highlights of 199& 
. ". 

Business PC costs come tumbling down 
'I0 help dri\'C down th{" costs of busin l'SS 

computing. we launched our Wired for 

Management initiative in September. Leading 

hardware and software suppliers joined us in 
announcing a series of specifications and products 
expected to make business PCs easier to upgrade. 
diagnose and repair remotely. For example. a new 
hardware monitoring chip trucks environmental 
conditions such as temperature and voltage. and 
reports to the central management software, 
which responds promptly to abnomlal conditions. 

Manufacturing records 
OUf manufacturing perfommnce continues 

to improve. even as we odd new facilities 

and odvances to increasingly complex produc­
tion processes. We built our nc .... 'Cst raclory. 
F::ab 12 in Chandler. Arizona. in IWOrd lime, 
going from ground breaking to produclion in 
23 months. The plant also achiC\cd record 

product yields on ramp.up. trimming months 
off lime 10 market and validating our policy of 

copying new manufacturing processes exactly 

from devclopmtntlab to production floor. 

n 
"I, ~a\ 
r ;'", 

Improving tomorrow today 
I n 1996. v.'C expanded our ('orpora te gi"i ng 

li nd l'onununity p rogra ms in responsc to 

cnonnous employee cmhusiasm. "lnlel Involved" 

links employee volunteers with projects in their 
interest areas: building homes with Habitat for 

Humani ty. Icaching computing skills in schools, 

protecting local wetlands. reading to children 

and more. In 1996 1ntcl employees around the 
world volunleered a total of 106.000 hours of 

labor to help make our communities beller 
places to live and .... ,orlc 

Show grandma the kids' latest artwork-over the phone 

I t sounds futuristic. but its here: For the first 
lime. a simple low-cost, PC-based video 

phone is available to home PC users (133-M Uz 

Pentium' processor minimum). lllc Intel Video 
Phone with ProSharc'technology. introduced 10 

market in 1996. delivers qua li ty " ldro (,() lIlmu­

nkatio ns O\'t'r onlfllary telephone lines. Major 

PC OEMs have incorporated the tcchnology 
into their current PCs. and developers have 

embraced the standards, ensuring compatibility 

among various video phone products. 

o 
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Facts and figures 

• • 
• . . 

I n 1996, PC users around the world continued to make the 

Pentium· processor their chip of choice. Strong sales of this 

processor family drove our 1996 results, returning our seventh 

consecutive year of both record revenues and earnings. We hit a 

new milestone with more than $20 billion in revenues in one year. 

•• 

D 
" 90 91 

Netreyenuea 
(Oo/Ian ill ",i1/iOlU) 

Return on ayerage 
stockholders' equity 

(Perr:eIII) 

• 

Compound 
annual growth 

rate (CAOR) 
percent 

Increaae In 
netreyenues 
oyer the laat 

decade . 

The fiscal year-end 
closing price of 

Illtel stock has risen 
al a 39% CAGRover 

the last ten years. 

-I 
9(91929)""-

Earnings per share 
(Dollan, odJws.IN f« uod Jpllts} 

• 

• .J .. ",. 

Stock price trading 
ranges by flacal year 

(Dol/an, tMlJuslNP sloa .<P(itJ) 
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" Book value per 
share at year-end 
(00110,,_ IIdJIISIN for JIOtt SpiIlJ) 

Geographic breakdown 
of revenue. 

(Pn-mol) 

Re.earch and 
development 

(DoIIIUI/1I mllliolu) 

Facts and figures 

Ten-year 
CAOR percent 

Increase In 
book value per 

share, reflecting 
reinvestment. 
of profits and 
new Infusions 

of capital. 

More Ihan half of 
Intel's 1996 revenues 
came from ollfside 

North America. 

CAGR percent 
Increase In 

R&D over the 
laat decade. 

-­.-~ 

Capital additions 
to property, plant 

and equipment 
(DoIlul'S ill millions) 

.. 

Employeea at year-and 
(11I1/wusulIlis) 

" " 911 91 

Common share. 
out.tandlng 

(III mil/iOllS. adjwslwfor stoc* sp/i/J) 

o 
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4004 

1,300 tf'(Jnsis/Ors 

(j().(}()() ins/mc/ions per second 

15 process steps /Q 

produce the 4004 drip 

The r i chest PC 
experience 

Based on Intel 's Media 
mark, our new Pentium' 

processor with MMX'" media 
enhancement technology 
boosts multimedia per­
formance by more than 
60 percent, compared 
to equi valent-speed 
Pentium processors 
without MMX technol­
ogy. The technology will 
be incorporated into 
Intel's new microprocessors 
beginning in 1997. 

The microprocessor 
then and now 
l1. That a difference a quarter­
VV century makes. In 1971, 
our 4004 was the world 's first 
microprocessor, providing 
astonishing performance for the 
time. Today, the complexity and 
performance of our chips have 
increased exponential ly, contin­
ui ng to power new revolutions. 

Infe l Corporetlon 1898 

Pentium" Pro proce •• or 

5.5 million {f'(JnsislOrs 

300million instnlc{ions per sec/)I/(I 

More than ZOO major steps 10 
produce IIII' Pelllium' Pro processor 

driving product gro\Nth 
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The content 
u s ers want 

I nte l is committed to improving 
the Internet experience fo r PC 

consumers. Among other efforts 
in 1996, we encouraged soft­
ware deve lopers to create more 
connected CD-ltOM t illes, giv­
ing PC users the best of both the 
powerfu l desktop and the dynamic 
Web. For instance, with FlUmmers 
IlIIemctive lim'el Guide, 
can take a 3D mu ltimedia 
tour of San Francisco on 
CD-ROM, and then use a 
built-in Internet link to book 
hotel rooms and event tickets. 

Memories 
on the move 

I ntel's flash-memory-based 
Miniature Cards open exciting 

doors for many digital consumer 
appliances. A matc hbook-sized 
card can slip into a digital cam­
era in lieu of film, and then be 
plugged into a Pc. Users can 
easily edit their pictures and 
incorporate them into a family 
newsletter or Web page. 

I 
f 
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More manas.,eable 
networKing 

Our Wired for Management 
in itiative aims to make net­

work management less complex 
and cost ly. Our new LANDesk­
Management Su ite of software 
allows remote monitoring and 
con .. rol of networked pes, and 

central ized distribution of 
software updates, making 
business networks much 

easier to manage and lowering 
the total costs of business 
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Brand value 
worldwide 

T he Intel illside ' branding 
1. program, which educates PC 
users about the benefits of lntel 
microprocessors, has played a 
critical role in our growth. In 
1996. the journal Fil/Gl~ciaJ 
World desig. 
nated the 
Intel brand 
the tcnth 
most va lu­
able brand 
in the world. 

~ . 

. . . 

Inte l C o ,.po ,.etlon 1098 

pr'etfel~elnc:e for 

Prime tim,! I s 
Intel time 

I n 1996, we launched new TV 
ad campaigns for the Pentium' 

processor. They highlight the 
processor's ability to deliver the 
best performance for local soft· 
ware and Internet applications­
and for the connected CD·ROM 

penllum 

software that brings users 
the best of both worlds. 
The ads are helping to 
convey the message that 

the Pentium processor is the 
chip of choice for the best PC 
expe ri ence. 
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International 
advartl.lng 

'-'1 Te have worked to de­
VV velop advertising mes­
sages and visual sty les 
wi ll work in markets a"DUIl( 

the world. Our e ffort s are 
aimed at building a consistent 
image of Intel in the minds of 
PC customers everywhere. 

the Intel Inside· brand 

Growin.,g 
our Drand 

I n 1996, more than 1,300 
licensees worldwide 

participated in the Intel 
Inside program. Tele­
vision advertising sup­
port for customers 
began in 1995 and has 
grown to include more 
tha n 60 OEMs, who use 
the Intel Inside logo and 

"bong"sound in ads fo r 
their Pcntiwn processor­
based PCs. 

Inte l C o rporet lon 1998 
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Tappi n&! _flots.ntlal 
worlowlde 
A round the world, we are 

.t"\. working to stimulate de­
mand in emerging markets 
and educate potential PC users 
about the power of ncnvorked 
pes. Aoout.50 percent of Intel's 
advert isi ng and promotion 
dollars are spent in locations 
outside the United States. 

I n t e r Corporation 1998 

reaching potential PC 

The fastest 
growing user group 

~
rea emerged as one of the 
world's most promising 

consumer markets for pes in 
1996. With children being the 
country's fastest growing seg­
ment of users, Lntel donated 
Pentium- processor-based pes 
and a Web server to Kid et: 

online service dedicated to 



Brazil,. hot 

A ccording to market research 
J-\.. firm IDC, the Brazilian PC 
market segment (largest in South 
America) grew 42 percent in 
units so ld from 1994 to 1995. 
Intel is focusing on the 70 percent 
of Brazilians under age 30, a 
generation hungry for power­
ful PC technology. OUf promo­

tional programs are having a 
strong effect- distributors report 
vigorous demand for Intel 
processor-based pes. 

customers worldwide 

Takl':!a It to the streets 
of china 

Exc iting new technology was 
on di splay in the People's 

Republic of China in the fall of 
1996. Intel coordinated a seri es 
of PC Demo Days in the coun­
try's major cities, with one hun­
dred PC retailers holding special 
events to demonstrate PC capa­
bilities to curious crowds. In 
Beijing alone, more than 80,000 
people joined in, getting a first-

tfi 
hand experience of the world 
of connected Intel processor­

based computing. 

." 

The India 
boom 

H ome to one-sixth of the 
Ea rth 's population, India 

enjoys a thriv ing economy, a 
growing high-tech industry base 
and a highly educated work 
force. Intcl is establi shing busi ­
ness and tcchnology offices in 
c ities throughout the country 
and is work ing direct ly with 
local PC companies, di stributors 
and users. In 1996, to increase 
computer literacy through 
ha nds-on experience, we do­
nated equipment and software 
for a new Intel Technology Lab 
at the prestigious Indian Institute 
ofTcchnology in Bangalore. 
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Whrwedo 
wnat we do 

I ntel is committed to bui lding 
va lue for stockholders. We 

ma intain a vigi lant, flexible and 
highly strategic approach to 
market opportun it ies in order to 
maximize long-tenn results. We 
are pleased that our efforts have 
returned significant value for 
our investors. In fiscal 1996, 
Intel's ma rket capitalization in­
creased more tha n $64 bill ion, 
and our fiscal year-cnd stock 
price grcw 139 pe rcent. 

Incr-easa In fl8cal 
year~and stock 
priCe, 1995-98. 

88 
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the bottom 

Outstanding 
earnings groYrlh 

D or fi scal 1996, our earn­
r ings per share were $5.81, 
a 44 pe rcent jump over 1995 
earnings per share. 

NOIe·/WI ~UIlCr dtN.f not gwlrrllllN juturr results. Slul,.. and per SNJ'" amoulllS rrponN Ir/'rrill Iw,~ bHtt adjwlttd fr sled- splm through 1996 0110' 



www.lntel .com 

Customers get 
more for less 

R turnillg va lue to stock­
holders is rooted in our 

abili ty to deliver results to our 
customcrs. We have consis­
tently genemted manufacturing 
advances to squeeze increasing 
numbers or transistors on to 
each processor- leading to 
more power on desk.ops for 
less und less money. This trend 
spurs creativity among hard­
ware and software companies, 
continuing to drive growth in 
the industry as a whole. 

PC cost per 
MIPS In 1991. 

(million ilt.flrucliOlU prr srffHld) 

PC coat p e r 
MIPS In 1998. 

I line for customers and stockholders 

•• 

THE MOST ADMIRED 

Coca-Col. 

Mira" Resorts 

Merck 

United Parcel Service 

Microsoft 

I Johnson 

Intel 

TlJW..lETIItIIlD IMSTORS 

2'3.8% 43.3% 

21.9% 25.4% 

22.1% 24.0% 

N.A. NA 

44.5% 88.3% 

43.8% 131.2% 

PlllCllr' Glmb.:I':'-'_-i-...:2:::1.:::9%::,~32~.1c:%:.... 
..... hlll HI1II, .. , 28.3% 6.2% 

11.8% 20.3% 

q 

f 
( 

f 

a 
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Many happy 
re1:urns 

I ntel stock has split 10 ....... _ 
through 1996. A nurchase 

of 100 shares fo r $2,350 
at the initi al public oft'er­
ing in 197 1 wou ld have 
grown to 15,188 shares 
worth more tha n $2 
million by the end of 
fi sca l 1996. 

Wha t Intel did for 
stockholders 

I ntel ranked # 1 in calendar 
year 1996 tota l return to 

investors among the top 100 
U.S. companies by market 
capitalization. In addition, in 
Fortune magazine's annual 
Corporate Reputations Survey, 
Intel was named the seven th 
most admired company in the 
U.s. (see table at left) . 



. . .. 
Consolidated statements of income 

Three years ended December 28,199& 

Net rewnues _._" .......... . 
Cost of sales _. __ .. 
Research and development 
Marketing, general and administrative 
Operating costs and expenses 
Operating income 

Interest expense 
Intcrest income and other, net 

Income before taxes 

Provision for taxes 

Nct income 

Earnings per common and common equivalent share 

Wcighted a' ·crage common and common equh·alent shares outstanding 

Sn! 1ICCOIfIPWI);/Ig /IOlD. 

199' 

S 20,847 

9,164 

1,808 

2,322 

13,294 

7,lS53 

(25) 
4{)6 

7,934 

2,777 

• 5,H17 

S 15.81 ... 

p ". 

1995 1994 

S 16,202 S11 ,lS21 

7,811 5,576 

1,296 1 ,111 

1,843 1.447 

10,950 8 ,134 

5,252 3 ,387 

(29) (57) 
415 273 ..... 3,603 

2,072 1,315 

S 3,566 • 2,288 

S 4.03 • 2.152 ... 874 
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Consolidated balance sheets 

December 28, 1S98 and December 30, 19915 

(1,. mlll~,-SllorelltflOlllltJ) 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Shon-Ienn invcstments 
Trnding assets 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $68 (S57 in 1995) 
Inventories 
Deferred tax assets 
Other current assets 

Tolal current ISseiS 

Property, plant and equipment: 
Land and buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

ProJK'rty. plant and equipment, net 

Long-ferm Im'{'Slmcols 

Other assets 

TOlal assets 

Liabililies and stockholders' equity 

CllJ'Tent liabilities: 
Short-Ienn deb( 

Accounts payable 
Deferred income on shipments to distributors 
Accrued compensation and bencfits 
Accrued advertising 
Other accrued liabilities 
Income taxes payable 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term debt 

Deferred tax Uabllliles 

Put warra ntJl 

CommitmenlJi and contingencies 

Stockholders' equity: 
Preferred Stock, S.OOI par value, 50 shares authorized; none issued 
Common Stock, S.OOI par value. 1.400 shares authorized: 821 issued and outstanding 

in 1996 and 1995, and capital in excess of par value 
Retained ~ings 

Total stockholdel""Jl' equity 

Totaillabilitia and stockholdel""Jl' equity 

~ ac:aNfI/IUIIJv.s -. 

p 

1996 

S 4,165 

3,742 

87 
3,723 

1,293 

570 
104 

13,684 

4,372 

8,729 

1,161 

14,262 

5,775 

8,487 

1,353 

21 1 

S 23,135 

S 38. 
96. 
47' 

1,128 

41 0 
507 

'66 
4,863 

728 

•• 7 

'" 

2,897 

13,975 

16,872 

S 23,73.5 

. '. 

1995 

S 1,463 

995 

3,116 

2,004 

' 08 
111 

8,097 

3,145 

7,099 

1,548 

11 ,792 

4,321 

7,471 

1,653 

283 

$ 17,504 

S 346 

664 

304 
756 
216 

326 
901 

3,619 

400 

620 

'" 

2,583 

9,557 

12,140 

S 17,.504 

C) 
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Consolidated statements of cash flows 

Three years ended December 28,1998 

(/~ mil/ions) /996 1995 1994 

Cash and cash equ iyalents, beginning of year $ 1,463 $ 1,180 $ 1,659 

Cash flows provided by (used for) operating activities: 
Net income 5,157 3,586 2,288 

Adjustments 10 reconcile nct income to net cash pro',idcd by (used for) operating activities: 
Deprecialion. 1,'" 1,371 1,028 
Net loss on retirements of property. plant lind equipment 120 75 42 
Amonizal ion of debt discount 8 ,. 
Change in deterred tax assets and liabilities 179 346 (150) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) in accounts receivable (607) (1,138) (530) 
Decrease (increase) in inventories 711 (635) (331 ) 
(Increase) in other assets (7) (251 ) (57) 
Increase in acCOt.lnts payable 105 289 148 
Tax benefit from employee stock plans 198 116 61 
Purchase of trading assets (75) 
(Gain) on trading assets (12) 
Increase in income taxes payable 185 372 38 
Increase in accrued compensation and benefits 370 170 44 
Increase (decrease) in olhcr liabilil ics 533 (73) 337 

TOlal adjuslllu:nts 3,586 450 64. 
Net cash pn}\'idt'd by operating activities 8,743 4,016 2,937 

Cash flows provided by (used for) investing activi lics: 

G 
Addilions to pmpcny. plant and equipment (3,024) (3,550) (2,441 ) 
Purchases of available-for-sale investments (4,683) (685) (3,168) 
Sales of available-for-sale inveslments 225 114 10 
Maturities and other changes in available-for-sale im'CStments 2,214 1,444 2,740 

Nct cash (used for) investing actl\-itics (5,268) (2,677) (2,859) 

Cash flows provided by (used for) financing activities: 
Increase (decrease) in soon-tcrm debt. net 43 (179) (63) 
Additions to long-teon debt 317 128 
Relircmenl of long-Ierm debt (4) (98) 
Proceeds from sales of shares through employee stock plans and other 261 192 150 
Proceeds from sales of put .... -:manls 56 85 76 
Repurehase and retiremenl of Common Slock (1,302) (1,034) (658) 
Paymcnt of dividends 10 stockholders (148) (116) (92) 

Net cash (used for) financing acth-ilies (773) (1,058) (557) 

Net increaS(' (dl'(:reaS(') in cash lind cash l'quh'lllent5 2,702 283 (,4781 

Clash and cash l'<luh'alenlS. end of year $ 4,165 $ 1,463 $ 1,180 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flO\\' information: I 
Cash paid during the year for: 

~ Interesl S 51 S 182 S 78 
I ncome taxes S 2,211 S 1,209 S 1,366 

C...v, {JQid p jll/~I j" 1995 UtdutJn appmriJttotely $108 mUfitM 11{ tlC'CW/fUlo/er/ 
,1fIt1'n/ "" z.m, COIIpOII SOlQ 1M/_tumll" 1995, 

Cmtl,,, 1995 <MOd 1994 IIMOIUIU 1kn~ bfot-fr 1l'd<wi/iN It! rntIp.r. 10 I~ 1996pn'$('1fla/iolt, 

!iN IK'roIIIj'1Ilfl)illg ItOIQ, 
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Consolidated statements of stockholders' equity 

Com_Sun 
and cupilU/ iJll!:rref.$ 

Three year. ended December 28,1998 o[pw.'(1/ .... 

NumlNT Rnai""'" 
(111 ifill/10M) ofslturt'3 111INJU1I' eomiJIg$ 

Balance al I~mbcr 25. 1993 837 S 2,194 S 5,3{)6 

Proceeds from sales of shares through employee stock plans. 
tax benefit of S61 and other 12 215 

Proceeds from sales of put warrams 76 
Reclassification of put .... 'arrnnt obligation. net (15) (106) 
Repurchase and rctiremt'Tlt of Common Stock (22) (164) (429) 
Redemption of Common Stock Purchase Rights (2) 
Cash dividends declared (5. 115 per share) (96) 
Net income 2,288 

Balance at I>CCCI1l~r J I. 1994 827 2,306 6,961 

Proceeds from sales of shares through employee stock plans. 
tax benefit of 5116 and other 13 310 

Proceeds from salt'S of PUt warrnnts 85 
ReclassifICation of put ..... arrant obligation, net 61 (42) 
Repurchase and retirement ofConmlOn Stock (19) (119) (855) 

Cash di\lidends declared (5.15 per share) (124) 
Unrealized gain on a\'ailable-for-sale investments, oct 51 

Net income 3,566 

Balance at DettmbcrJO,l995 .21 2,583 9,557 

Proceeds from sales of shares through emplC1JeC stock plans. 
tax benefit of 5196 and other " 457 

Proceeds from sales of put ..... anants 58 
Reclassification of put ..... arrant obligation. oct 7. 272 
Repurchase and retirement of Common Stock (17) (269) (925) 
Cash dividends declared (5.19 per share) (156) 
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments. net 7. 
Net income 5,157 

Balance at December 28, 1996 821 S 2,897 S 13,975 

S« fl«'tJml1UnJ~"1J /IIOln. 

TOlU/ 

S 7,500 

215 

76 

(121 ) 

(593) 

(2) 

(96) 

2,288 

9,261 

310 

85 

" (t,034) 
(124) 

51 

3,588 

12,140 

457 

58 0 
342 

(1,194) 

(156) 

7. 
5,157 

S 16,872 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements 

Accounting policies 
Fiscal year. Intel Corporation ("Intel" or '1hc Company'1 has 

a fiscal year that ends the last Saturday in December. Fiscal 
years 1996 and 1995. each 52-week years, ended on December 
28 and 30, respectively. Fiscal 1994 was a 53-week year and 
ended on December 31, 1994. The nellt 53·week year will end 
on December 30. 2000. 

Basis of presentation. The consolidated financial statements 
include the accounts of Intel and its wholly owned subsidiaries. 
Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have bccrI 
eliminated. Accounts denominated in foreign currencies have 
been remeasured inlO the functional currency in accordance 
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 
52. "Foreign Currency Translation," using the U.S. dollar as the 
functional currency. 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with 
generally accepted accounting principles requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

JII\·eslments. Highly liquid investments with insignificant 
interest rate risk and with original maturities of three months or 
less are classified as cash and cash equi\'11lents. Invesunents with 
maturities greater than three months and less than one year are 
classified as short-teon invcstments. Investments with maturities 
greater than one year are classified as long-term investments. 

The Company accounts for investments in accordance with 
SFAS No. 115. "Accounting for Cenain Investments in Debt 
and Equity Securities." The Company's policy is to protect the 
value of its im'esunent portfolio and to minimize principal risk 
by earning returns based on current interest ratcs. A substantial 
majority of the Company's lTlllrlo:etable im'estments are classified 
as !n'8ilablc-for-sale as ofthc balance sheet date and are reponed 
8t fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, recorded 
in stockholders' equity. The cost of securities sold is based on 
thc specific identification method. Realized gains or losses and 
declines in value, if any, judged to be other than temporary on 
available·for-sale securities are reponcd in other income or 
expense. Investments in non·marketable instruments are record­
ed at the lo\ ... er of cost or market and included in other assets. 

Trading assets. During 1996. the Company purehased secu­
rities classified as trading assets, The Company maintains its 
trading asset portfolio to generate returns that offset changes 
in certain liabilities related to deferred compensation arrange· 
ments, The trading assets consist of marketable equity securities 
and are stated at fair value. Both realized and unrealized gains 
and losses are included in other income or expense and generally 
offset the change in the deferred compensation liability. which is 
also included in other income or expense. 

Fair "alues of financial instruments. Fair \'11lucs of cash 
and cash equivalents approximate cost due to the short period 
of time to maturity. Fair \'8lues of long-tenn investments. long· 
term debt, short-tenn im'eSlmcnts. short-term debt. trading 
assets, non-marketable instruments. S\\'8p5, currency forn'3ld 
contracts. currency options. options hedging marketable instru­
ments and options hedging non-marketable instruments are 
basc.'<l on quoted market prices or pricing models using current 

market rates. No consideration is given to liquidity issues in 
valuing debt. 

Dcrh'ath'e financial Instruments. The Company uti lizes 
derivative financial instruments to reduce financial market risks. 
These instruments are used to hcdge foreign currency, equilY 
and interest rate market exposures ofundcrlying assets. liabili­
ties and other obligations. The Company does not use derivative 
financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. The 
Company's accounting policies for these instruments are based 
on the Company's designation of such instruments as hedging 
transactions. The criteria the Company uses for designating an 
instrument as a hedge include the instrument's effectiveness in 
risk reduction and one-to-one matching of derivative instru­
ments to underlying transactions. Gains and losses on currency 
forwnrd contracts. and options that are designated and effective 
as hedges of anticipated transactions, for which a firm commit­
ment has bccrI anaincd are deferred and recognized in income 
in the same period that the underlying transactions are settled. 
Gains and losses on currency forward contracts, options and 
S\\'8pS that are designated and effective as hedges of existing 
transactions are recognized in income in the same period as 
losses and gains on the underlying transactions are recognized 
and generally offset. Gains and losses on any instruments nOI 
meeting the above criteria would be recognized in incomc in 
the current period. Income or expense on swaps is accrued as 
an adjustment to the yield of the related investments or debt 
they hedge. 

J n"cntories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mar­
ket. Cost is computed on a currently adjusted standard basis 
<"which approximates actual cost on a current average or first-in. 
first-out basis). Inventories at fiscal year-ends were as fo])()\.\'S: 

(III miflioM) J996 J99j 

Materials and purchased pans S "" S 6" 
Work in proctSS 6" 707 

Finished goods 3" 623 

Total S 1,203 • 2,004 

Property, plant and equipment. Propeny, plant and equip­
ment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed for financial 
reponing purposes principally by use of the straight-line method 
O\'CT the following estimated usefullr.'eS: machinery and equip­
ment, 2- 4 years; land and buildings, 4-45 )-eaTS. 

The Company adopted SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the 
Impairment of Long.Lived AssetS and for Long-Lived Assets to 
Be Disposed Of." effective as of the beginning of fiscal 1995. 
This adoption had no material effect on the Company's financial 
statements. 

Deferred income on shipments to distributors. Certain of 
the Company's sales are made to distributors under agreements 
allowing price protection and/or right of return on merchandise 
unsold by the distributors. Because of frequent sales price reduc­
tions and rapid technological obsolescence in the industry. Intel 
defers ~tioo of such sales until the merchandise is sold by 
the distributors. 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements 

Ad\·crlising. Cooperalive advertising obligations are accrued 
and the costs expensed at the same time the related revenue is 
recognized. All other advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 
The Company does not incur any direct·response advertising 
costs. Advertising expense was $974 mill ion. S654 million and 
$459 million in 1996. 1995 and 1994. respectively. 

I nterest. Interest as .... 'ell as gains and losses related to con­
tractual agreements to hedge certain investment positions and 
deb!: (sec "Derivative financial instruments") are recorded as net 
interest income or expense on a monthly basis. Interest expense 
capitalized as a component of construction costs was $33 mil­
lion. $46 million and $27 million for 1996. 1995 and 1994, 
respectively. 

Earnings pt'r common and common Ctluh'alcnt share. 
Earnings per common and common equivalent share are com­
puted using the weighted average number of common and 
dilutwe common equi\'3lent shares outstanding. Fully dilUled 
earnings per share ha\-e not been presented as part of the con­
solidated Slatements ofincome because the differences are 
inSignificant. 

Siock dluributlons. On June 16,1995. the Company effected 
a Iwo-for-one stock split in the fonn of a special stock dism'bu­
tion to stockholders of record as of May 19.1995. Share. per 
share. Common Stock. capital in excess of par wlue, stock 
option and warrant amounts herein have been restated to reflect 
the effect of this split. 

On January 13. 1m. the Board of Directors of the Company 
appl'()l\.'Cd a two-for-one stock split (the "1997 stock split") to be 
effected as a special stock distribution of one share ofCorrunon 
Stock for each share of the Company's Common Stock outstand­
ing. subject to stockholder appro.lal of an increase in authorized 
shares at the Company's Annual Meeting on May 21,1997. 
Because th~ 1997 stock split cannot be effected until there is 
an increase in authorized shar~s, none of the share. per share, 
Common Stock, capital in excess of par wlue. stock option or 
warrant amounts herein has been restated to reflect the effect 
of the 1997 stock split. 

Common Stock 
1998 Step-Up Warrants. In 1993, the Company issued 40 

million 1998 Step-Up Warrants to purchase 40 million shares 
of Common Stock. This transaction resulted in an increase of 
$287 million in Common Stock and capital in excess of par 
value. representing net proceeds from th~ offering. The Warrants 
became exercisable in May 1993 at an ~ffective price of$35.75 
per share of Common Stock. subject to annual increases to a 
maximum price ofS41.75 per share effective in March 1997. As 
of December 28, 1996, approximately 40 million Warrants were 
exercisable at a price of$40.25 and expire on March 14. 1998 if 
nOi previously exercised. For 1996 and 1995, the Warrants had 
a dilutive effect on earnings per share and represented approxi. 
mately 19 million and II million common equivalent shares. 
respectively. The Wamnts did not have a dilum-e effect on earn­
ings per share in 1994. 

Stock repurehase program. lbe Company has an authoriza­
tion from the Board of Directors to repurchase up to 110 million 

shares of Intel's Common Stock in open market or ncgotiated 
transactions. During 1996 the company repurchased 16.8 mil­
lion shares at a COSt of51.3 billion, including $ 108 million for 
C.XCrciSl'<l put \varrants. As of December 28. 1996, the Company 
had repurchased and retired approximately 84.9 million shares 
at a cost ofS3.5 billion since the program began in 1990. As 
of December 28. 1996, after reserving 4.5 mill ion shares to 
cO\'cr outstanding put warrants. 20.6 million shares remained 
a\'3ilable under the repurchase authorization. 

Put warrants 
In a series of pri\'3te placements from 1991 through 1996. the 

Company sold put .... '3rrants that entitle the holder of each war­
rant to sell one share of Common Stock to the Company at a 
specified price. Activity during the past three years is summa­
rized as follows: 

PIll ... 'mOIlU 

CII,"UI<lI;~ owslllltding -- N"""" of PtNmliaJ 
(I .... III(}#U) _owl --" obIigr/tioII 

l>f«-mbfr ZS- I99J I ", " .. S ... 
"'16 " 25.0 '" ElIeTtl$« (2.0) '''' Explralioru (27.6) (623) 

Ot«nlbfr 31. 1994 , .. 25.0 ". 
"16 " 17.5 .25 

Repun:1wc5 (5.5) (201) 

EJi:plrallons (25.0) (743) 

Oftfnl~r 30.1995 270 12.0 '" "'16 " '.0 003 - (1.8) (108) 

&:plrauons (14.1) (a45) 

Ik«mbtr 28, 1996 I '" ••• S '" 
The amoum related to Imel's potential repurchase obligation 

has been reclassified from siockhoiders ' equity to put .... '3rrams. 
The 4.5 million put warrants outstanding III December 28, 1996 
expire on various dates between February 1997 and April 1997 
and have exercise prices ranging from $56 to $69 per share. with 
an avemge exercise price ofS61 per share. 1bere is no significant 
dilutr.-e effect on earnings per share for the periods presented. 

BorrowIng. 
Shon-term deb!. Shon-term debl and weighted average 

interest rotes at fiscal year-ends .... ~ as follows: 

"" "" Jf"/ghIM lI'tighlnf 
m."", m""", 

(/~ mlllIQIIS) BaI(Uf(Y j~Ierf!.l1 mIt! BolallC'8 itr/err5ll'fllt! 

Borrowed under 
Jines or cmiil S 30 NlA S " 3.2% 

R~~ rq1UKhase 
~l5l»yablc 
in non-U.S. currmcies '" U .. '" 9.2% 

Notes~blc , 0.1% , ".1" 
Drafb r-yablc " NlA 16' NfA 

TOII I I '" S ,.. 

fb 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements 

At December 28. 1996. thc Company had established roreign 
and domestic lines or credit or appro.1(imately S 1.1 billion. a por­
tion or which is uncommiued.ll1e Company gcncrally renegoti­
ates these lines annually. Compensating balance requirements 
are not matcrial. 

Thc Company also borrows under commercial paper programs. 
Maximum borrowings reached $306 million during 1996 and 
$700 million during 1995. This debt is rated A 1+ by Standard 
and Poor's and PI by Moody·s. Proceeds are used to rund shon­
ternl .... 'Orking capital needs. 

Long-I"(' rm debl. Long-tcrm debt at fiscal year-ends was as 
rol1ows: 

(In millions) 

Payable in U.S. dol1al"$: 

AFICA I30nds due 2013 at 4",-

RC'o'crsc rcpurchaso: Hrr:lOg~m~m due 20Ul 
Other U.S. dollar dchl 

Payable in other cu"",ncie5: 

trish punl due 2008- 2024 al 6°,,- 12% 

Gred: draehma due 200t 

1'01.1 

1996 1995 

SIlO S 110 

300 

• • 
'" , .. 
" " -:S:-:7="~ 5 ... 

The Company has b'1l3Tantccd repayment or principal and inter­
est on the AFICA Bonds issued by the Pueno Rico Industrial. 
Medical and Environmental Pollution Control Facilities Finan­
cing Authority (A FICA). The bonds are adjustable and redeem­
able at the option or cither the Company or thc bondholder cvcry 
fivc YC:lrs through 2013 and are ncxt adjustable and redeemable 
in 1998. The Irish punt borro ..... ings were made in connection 
with the financing or a factory in ireland, and Intel has in\'ested 
the proceeds in Irish punt dcnominated instruments or similar 
maturity to hedge roreign currcn<..)' and interest rate cxposures. 
TIle Greek drachma borrowings were made under a tax incen­
tive program in Ireland and the proceeds and cash flows have 
been swapped to u.s. dollars. The $300 million reverse repur­
chase arrangement payable in 2001 has a current borrowing 
rate of 5.9G1o. The funds l\."'Ceivcd undcr this arrangemcnt are 
avai lablc ror general eorporme purposes. This debt may be 
redeemed or repaid under ccnain eircumSlances at the option 
of dlher the lender or Intel. 

Under shelf registration statements filed with the Securities 
and Exchange CommiSloion (SEC). lmel has the authority to 
issue up to $3.3 billion in the aggregate of Common Stock, 
Prererred Siock. depositary shares. debt securities and Wamlnts 
10 purchase thc Company's or other issuers' Common Stock, 
Preferred Stock and debt securities. and subjcct to cenain 
limits. stock index \\';)rrants and foreign currency exchange 
units. In 1993. Intel completed an offering of Step-Up WammlS 

(see "1998 Step-Up Warrnnts"). The Company may issue up to 
S 1,4 billion in additional securities under effective registration 
statements. 

As or December 28. 1996. aggregate debt maturities were as 
follO\\ s: 1997- none: 1998 $110 million: 1999- none: 2000 -
none: 2001 - $346 million: and thereafter- S272 million. 

o p ... 

Invaatmanta 
The stated returns on a majority of the Company's markCUlble 

investments in long-teml fixed rate debt and equity securities are 
sv,'llpped to U.S. dollar LlllOR-based returns. The currency risks 
of imeslmcnts denominated in foreign currencies are hedged 
with roreign currency borrowings, CUITCncy forward contract:. or 

currency interest rale swaps (sec "Dcrivati\'e financial inSlru­
ments" under "Accounting policies"). 

Invcstments with maturities or greater than six months consist 
primarily of A and A2 or better rated financial instruments and 
coulllcrpanics. hW(."S1111ents with maturitics of up 10 six months 
consist primarily of A I and P I or better rated financial instru­
ments and countcrparties. Foreign govemmem regulations 
imposetl upon invcstment aitcm:ltives of foreign subsidiarics, 
or the absence or A and A2 rated counterparties in eenain 
countries, result in some minor cxceptions. Inters practice is to 
obtll in and secure a\'llilable collateral rrom counterpanics against 
obligations whenever Intel deems appropriatc. At December 
28.1996, investments wcre placed with appro.1(imately 200 dif­

ferent counterparties. 
Investments III December 28, 1996 were as rollows: 

G= 
_Iced 

,"e""·~",'~~IC----------:cCC='"='c- .,"' 
Commercial papC'f 5 2.386 S 
Hank d"flOSits 1,846 
RCl'un::hbe agreements 931 
loon partICIpations 691 

Corponllt' bonds 657 10 
Floating nile notes 366 

Securities of foreign 
gO\emmcnts 

Fixed rule nou:s 
Other debt securilles 

Total deb! ><ccuritic~ 

lI edg~'d equity 

Prdcrrcd . ,ock lind 
other equilY 

Towl equily sccunlies 

Swaps hedging 
Inwslmcnl.!. In 
lkbt liCCUritlc. 

Swa[l. hedging 
investments in 
l'quny sa:unl1es 

Options hedgmg 
inVestments tn 
equity S«'Untlei 

CU""'!"IC)' fOl"Vo"llf"d 
COIlUDctS hedging 
io\'tSUnmts in 
debt !lC'CUrilies 

TOlll t ., ... lIable-for-latr 
s«urilies 

lcs:!; amounts claSSified 
as eash equivalents 

TO l.lln'nlnt ~nts 

,.. .. 
"" , .. 

7,688 24 

891 71 

270 174 

1,161 245 

5 

" 
{OJ 

5 

(3,932) 

54,908 S 2M 

S (1) 52,385 

(2) 1,14-4 

(11 t30 .. , 
(6) 561 

'" 
(2) 277 

'" (2) 282 

(14) 7.898 

(15) ,.7 

(3) 441 

(1 B) 1,386 

(t71 (12) 

(42) (27) 

(16) (251 

5 

1107) 1,027 

(3.Im) 

S (107) S 5.0" 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements 

Investments at December 30. 1995 were as follows: 

(In ",Hlions) 

Commercial paper 
Repurchase agreements 

Securities of fO«'ign 
gtJ\'allmcnts 

Cllf"JlOBte bonds 
Bank tune deposIts 

Lean participations 
Floohng rale notes 

Fi~ed ratc notes 

Collateralized mongBgc 
obllgahons 

OIlier debt Stturilies 

TOOII deb! 5e(:untics 

Iledged equity 

I'nferrtd SIOCI: and 
other eqully 

TOI.lII tqUIlY 5eCIInues 

Swaps hedgll1g irl',t'Slmmlli 
111 deb!liCCurltJeS 

S\Olllp5 hedgll1g im"estmnlts 
111 equity !ieC\IfIUCS 

Currc:rqo forv.<mL contracts 
hedgmg investments 
111 debt Sttunues 

Totllt .... lIl1bl~ror-salr 
SKuri tlH 

Less amounts clusificd 
as cash equI\1I1cnb 

Tot. t in\HtmentJ 

S 576 

.74 

.56 

375 ,.., 
27' ,,. 
". 
", 
no 

3.150 

'" 
309 , .. 

a,elK) 

G"W 
UnrMli: ... 1 

gi,ifl!l 

s 

l 

5 

, .. 
" ". 
, 
5 

, 
'" 

s '" 

£511"'111..0 
foil" 

''all#' 

S S 576 

'74 

(1) 456 

Il , 

380 

360 

27' 
". 

". 
(1) 128 

Il, _ -,-" ::.' 
(4) 3.153 

'" 
(11 ) _ -=389=. 

(11) 865 

I" 

(47) 

(71) 

$ (71) 

17, 

(42) 

, 
3,$72 

(1.3241 

$ 2,548 

In 1996 and 1995. debt and markelable securities wilh a fair 
value at the date of sale of5225 million and 5 114 million. respec­
tively, were sold. The gross realized g..'1ins on such sales totuled 
57 million and 560 million, respectively. There were no 1T41tcriai 
proceeds. gross realized gains or gross rcaliLoo losses from sales 
of securities in 1994. 

11lc amor1izcd cost and estimated fai r value of im'estrnenlS in 
debt securities at December 28.1996. by contractual maturity, 
","'Cre as follows: 

1111 .. 'l/lOIU""',i_--,,-_____ _ 
Due In t year or ~ 

Due In t 2)'tatS 

Due In 2 5 y~rs 

Due aller S )'1:ars 

TOlyl hl\'rsrm~ ntJ in dr bl $«urilies 

Esli"""tJ 
foil" 

COSI ,'U/w 

$ 7,005 S 7,007 

'00 .. 
m 

$1,688 

'" .. 
", 

$ 7,6N 

p ". 

Derivative financial Instruments 
Outstanding notional amounts for derivative financial instru­

ments at fiscal ycar-cnds were as follows: 

(/n",il/imuj 

Swaps h~'(!ging investments in delM SI..'Curi lies 

S\\llPS hedging ;m'estntents in equity securities 

S .... aps hedging debt 

CUI'n'IlC)' forward contracts 
Currency opIions 

Options hedging im~tments 
in martl:fable equity Sl.'Curiti~'S 

OptiolU hedging inl'estments in 
oon-marketable instrunHmts 

'996 
S 900 

S 918 

S .56 

S 1,499 

S .. 

s " 
s 

19" 
S 824 

S 56' 

S '" 
S 1,310 

S " 

s 

s " 

While the contract or notional amounts pr(Nide one measure 
of the vol ume of these transactions, they do not represent thc 
amoum of the Company's exposure to en.--dit risk. The amounts 
potentially subject to credit risk (arising from the possible inabil­
ity of counterparlics to meet the Icnns of their contracts) are 
generally limiled to the amounts, ifany. by \1ihich the counter­
parties' obligations exceed the obligations of the Company. The 
Company controls credit risk through credit approvals, limits 
and monitoring procedures. Credit rating criteria for off-balance­
sheet transactions are similar 10 those for investments. 

Swap IIgret.'ments, The Company utilizes s .... ~..lp agreements to 
exchange the foreign currency, equity and interest rate returns of 
its investment and debt portfolios for a flooting US. dollar inter­
est rate based return. The floating nlles on swaps are based pri­
marilyon U.S. dollar LlBOR and reset on a monthly. quarterly 
or ~miannual basis. Income or expense on swaps is accrued 
as an adjustment to the yield of the related investments or debt 
they hedge. 

Pay rutes on swaps hedging investments in debt securities 
match the yields on the underlying in1iestmcnts they hedge. 
Payments on swaps hedging invcstments in equity securities 
match the equity returns on the underlying investments they 
hedge. Receh'e rotes on swaps hedging debt match the expense 
on the underlying debt they hedge. Maturity dates ofs\vaps 
match those of the underlying invcstment or the debt they hedge. 
There is approximately a one-to-one matching of swaps to invest­
ments and debt. Swap agreements remain in effect until expira­
tion. If a contrnct remains oubtanding after the tcrnlination of a 
hedged relationship, subsequent changes in the market value of 
the contract would be recognized in earnings. 
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Weighted average pay and receive rates. average maturities 
and r.mge of maturities on S'n'3.pS at December 28. 1996 were 
as follows: 

lleigh/cd 
1I,'ig/ut'd -- lleig/!Ied -- 1\'a'i\'I' -,.".. ROlIg~of 

M ' - ro" maruril)" INIIUrilies 

Swaps hedging 
irnl.'Stmrnts in U.S, 
dollar debt se-curities 6.3% 5.7% "- 0-2 years 

Swaps hedging 
investments in foreign 
currency debt securities 8.7% 7.4% ,8_ 0-3y~ 

Swaps hedging 
in\'cstmcms in 
l"quily sccmilics H'A 5.6% .4_ 0-1 years 

S"'lIPS hedging debl 5.6% 6.9% 3.9 years 2-5 years 

NOIf'; Illy <111<1 1"f('11w fIlt .... 01'1.' btued "" ,"" n'se! nlll'SlhlJl "..,... in f'ffi'c! 01 
l>«emlx.,. 111. 1996. 

Other fore ign currency instru ments. Intel transacts busi­
ness in \'3.rious foreign currencies. primarily Japanese yen and 
certain European currencies. The Company has established 
revenue and balance sheet hedging programs to protect against 
reductions in value and \-olatility of future cash ~'S caused by 
changes in foreign exchange ratt'S. The Company utilizes cur­
rency fOf\\'3.rd contracls and currency options in these hedging 
programs. The maturities on these instruments are less than 12 
months. Deferred gains or losses attributable to foreign currency 
instruments are not matcnal. 

Fair value. of financial Inatrumenta 
lbe estimated fair values of financial instruments outstanding 

at fiscal year-ends were as follows: 

"'" "OJ 
Bllmaled EstimolN 

C<lnJ;n.g fi,;r C,,"ying fair 
(I" "dlll'OO!I) ~, milk' -" 'llluf' 

Cash and cash cqUi\'DIC111~ S 4.165 S 4.165 S 1.463 S 1,463 
Shon·to;'1l11 in\'c~tmcnts S 3.736 S 3.736 5 995 , 895 

Tr.lding asscts , 87 , 87 , 5 
Long·tcrm in\estmenlS S 1,4t6 S 1.418 S 1.699 S 1.699 
Non·marketable 

iru;lrumCn15 , 
'" 

, , .. , 
'" 

, 259 

Swaps hedging in'TSt· 
ments in debt securities • (12) , (12) , 17) , I') 

S"'3f1S hcdgin,: 
ur .. ~trIlC111S In 

equity s«urilies • 1271 , 127) , (42) , (42) 
OptionS hedging irn1:St. 

ITK'llIS in markclllbic 
equity 5eCUrilies • 125) • (25) , • 

Options hedging 
in\"CStmenUi In non· 
marketable ifutrumal1s • • • 19) S (13) 

Short'lerm debt • "") , 1389) , 13<6) • 13<61 

Loog·term debt • (728) S (731) S ''''') S 1399) 

Swaps hedging deb! • S " S S I') 
Currency fOf\\lIrd 
conll1ldS • 5 • " S 3 , • 

Cum:ncy 0p"onS • S S S 

Concentration a of credit rlak 
Financial instruments that pOiential1y subject the Company to 

concentrations of credit risk consist principally of investments 

• 
and trade receivables. Intel places its investments with high­
crcdit-quality counterparties and by policy. limits the amount 
of credit exposure to anyone counterpany. A substantial major­
ity of the Company's trade receivables arc derived from sales to 
manufacturers of microcomputer systems. with the remainder 
spread across various other industries. 

During 1995. the Company experienced an increase in its con­
centration of credit risk due to increasing trade receivables from 
sales to manufacturers of microcomputer systems. Although the 
financial exposure to individual customers increased in 1996, the 
concentrntion of credit among the largest customers decreased 
slightly during the yellr. The Company's five largest customers 
accounted for approximately 30% of net 1\. .... 'cnucs for 1996. At 
December 28. 1996. these customers accounted for approxi­
mately 25% of nct accounts receivable. 

The Company endeavors to keep pace with the evolving com­
puter industry and has adopted credit policies and standards 
intended to accommodate industry growth and inherent risk. 
Management belicves that credit risks are moderated by the 
diversity of its end customers and geographic sales areas. Intel 
pcrfonns ongoing credit evaluations of its customers' financial 
condition and requires collateral as deemed necessary. 

Int.r •• t Income and other 

(I" mllbotu/ ''''' "OJ "" Intcresl mcomc • ,.. • 272 • '" Foreign tll1TC1K)' gams ,. 
" " OthcT income " 
,,. 23 

Tot. t S ..,. S '" S '" 
Other income for 1995 included approximately S58 million 

from the settlement of ongoing litigation and S60 million from 
sales ofa ponion of the Company's investment in marketable 
equity securities. Other income for 1994 included non-recurring 
g.1ins from the settlement of various insurance claims. 

Provl.lon for taxe. 
111e provision for taxes consisted of the following: 

(I" mllli(JnsJ ''''' "OJ ,'" 
Income before laxeS: 

U.S. S 5,515 S 3,427 ...... 
Foreign 2,419 ..,,, 1.143 

TOIlltlnCOlllt I)(oro", III.\es S 7,834 S S,63IIl S .... 
I'l'O'l iSIon ror laxes: 
Ftdcral: 
Cumnt S 2.046 5 1,169 S 1.lIilll 
D<fcrm! 8 30' 1171) .... 1,476 ." 

State: 
Currenl 288 203 '" FOO:lgn: 
c_, ,.. 

'" 
,,. 

""fcrm! m " 28 

<3, 393 '" Totat pro\islun ror 18 .\ " S 2,771 S 2,072 S 1,315 -EIT('t"th"c In nllt 35.0'4 3 .. % .... % -
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The tax benefit associated with dispositions from employee 
stock plnns reduced taxes currently payable for 1996 by S 196 
million (S116 million and $61 million for 1995 and 1994, respec­
tively). 

The provision for taxes reconciles to the amount computed 
by applying the SUltutOry federal rate of 35% to income before 
taxes as follows: 

(I" .... IIiQlU) "" "" 1m 

Computed ellpttted tall $2.m 5 1,973 5 1,261 

SUite 1a."«.'S. net of federal bl"1lefils ". '" H" 
Other (186) ,33, (SI ) 

"I"{",ls io ll (or 11.\ts $2,177 S 2,072 S 1,31S 

Deferrcd irn:ome tfiXCS reAccl lhe nel tax effects of temporary 
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilitics 
for financial TCpOr1ing purposes and the amounts used for income 
tax purposes, 

Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets 
and liabilities at fiscal year-ends .... 'Cre as follo-...1>: 

(/ .. .. "J/OOIIS) "" "" [)erer~ I ... 15M-I) 

Aect\Ird oompcn,;ahon and ~lX"fi\S S " S " Deferred IIICOfIX" '" '" lllYmtory \lItlWlOII and ~Ialro ~ '" ,0< 

Int~ and lOI.\CS " " """'. ~ '" '" 
'" '" [)erfrrtd 'n lIabllilin: 

[)q\fttiallon (573) (475) 

Un~lIIcd c:ammp or certam 5ubsldumcs ''''' (116) 

"""'. ~ I'"~ ,29, 
(997) "." 'lfl deferred 'n (1I.bllll) • (4271 S (2121 

US. income I3XCS .... 'Cre not provided for on a cumulath<e total 
of approximately S992 million of undistribuled earnings for cer­
tain non-US. subsidiaries. The Company intends to rcim'CSt these 
earnings indefinitely In opcr.l.lions outside the United States. 

During 1996. Intel reached resolution on all outstanding 
issues related to mcomc tax returns for the years 1978-1987. 
Final adjustments were also reccived from the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) for the years 1988 1990. Neither event had a 
material effect on the Companys 1996 financial Sl3temenlS, 

The Companys US. Income tax rclUms fOf the years 1991-
1993 art presently under cxammalton by the IRS. Final pro­
posed adJuslmcms havc not yct been recch'ed fOf" these years, 
Management belicves that adequate amounts of tax and related 
interest and pcnahi~. if any. h.a\e been pl"O\lided fOf" any adjust­
ments that may result for the years under examination. 

Employee ben.flt plana 
Slo<"l\ option plans. Intel has a stock option plan (hereafter 

refcm:d to as the EOP Plan) under "'ilich OfflCCTS, key employ­
ees and non-employee directors may be granted options 10 pur-

chase shares of the Company's authorized bUI unissued Common 
Stock, The Company also has an Executive Long-Tenn Siock 
Option Plan (ELTSOP) undcr which cer1ain employees. includ­
ing officers. may be granted options to purchase shares of the 
Company's authorized but unissued Common Stock. [n January 
1997 the Board of Directors approved lhe 1997 Stock Option 
Plan. which made an additional 65 million shares available for 
employC'CS other than officers and din.'C1:ors. Under all plans, the 
option purchase price is equal to fnir markct value .11 the date 
ofgrnnt. 

Options currently expire no lmer than ten years from the grant 
date and gencr"Jty vest after five years. Proceeds received by the 
Company from exercises arc credited to Common Stock and 
capital in excess of par value. Additional information with 
respect to the EOP and the ELTSOP activity was as fo llows: 

Ouwuntiing oplions 

JI ..... gIIIN 
SM~ "" ... " .. u'VllluhI~ NumlKr """'"' (I .. IIIillIQllSJ ;,.""""' ",""'" -Ilt«mbtr 25. 199J .... 63.' SIUO 

GnLIltS (12.0) 12.0 ,n" 
~ercises (8.8) S .. " 
Cancelt3tlOltS ... (1.6) $ 20.63 

1X«lI1bfrJ I. I99-4 .... ..., S 15.211 

Gnllnl$ (I4.0j 14.0 $ 48.22 

uerctses (10.7) $ 6.14 

CiI/IC('lIations 3.' (3.0) $ 25.66 

t>ffl'lI1btr 30. 1995 "-. " .. S 21 ,20 

G~" (13.3) 13.3 $ 69.12 

Exercl50eS (11.9) $ 9.86 

CancellatlOl15 2> (2.5) $ 34.10 

IMfll1twr 28. 1996 32,\1 .... S2$.i$ 

Options eltCrt isable al 

Deecmber 3 t . 1994 28.8 $ 7,54 

December 30.1995 29. ' $ 9.10 

Ikccmber 28.19% 28.6 $ 11.4<1 

The mnge of exercise prices for options outstanding at 
December 28,1996 was $4.79 to $131.19, The range ofexcrcisc 
prices for options is wide due primarily to thc increasing price 
ofthc Company's stock O'ocr the period of the grants. 

The following tables summarize infonnation about options 
outstanding at December 28.1996: 

lI;';glll"" 

~-
Hnglut'd 

''''''''' " ~~. ~-JJwo{l .. ualli}e .....,.. 
~of~ptYa lIlillions) (I .. )'ftln) -54.79$13.41 "' .• 3.1 $10.26 

S\J,63- S36,tJ 25.3 '.1 $27.29 

$38,91 $t31.19 25. ' 8.9 559.12 

TOIII .... .. , S29.i$ 

(j) 
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£xerrisabIe option.< 

lllighted 
.Vrmtberoj m""" Sh<ucJ(i1l ...-

RJuwe of unriM prien 1IIi111oos) -$4.79-513.41 ,.. 5 9.34 

513.63--536.13 2.G 524.92 

538.91- $131.19 •• 555.21 

Total " .. S11.44 

These options will expire ifnot exercised at specific dates 
mnging from Janunry 1997 to December 2006. flriccs for oprions 
exercised during the three.year pericxl ended December 28. 1996 
ranged from S3.04 to 569.43. 

SlOek Participation I'lall. Undcr this plan. eligiblc cmploy· 
ees may purchase shares of Imel's Common Stock at 85% of 
fa ir markct value at specific. predetcnnincd dates. Of the 118 
million shares authorizl.:d to be issued under the plan. 23.8 mil­
lion shares were available for issuance at December 28. 1996. 
Employees purchased 3.5 million shares in 1996 (3.5 million 
and 4.0 mill ion in 1995 and 1994. respectively) for SI40 million 
(S i lO million and 594 million in 1995 and 1994. rcs]>CClivcly). 

Pro rorllla inrormation. The Company has elected to rollow 
APB Opinion No.25. "Accounting ror Stock Issued to Employ­
ees.-' in accounting for ilS employcc Slock options because. as dis­
cussed below. the altcm.ui\'c fair \'lI lue accouming provided ror 
under SFAS No. 123. "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa­
tion." requires the use of option \'lIlu:nion models that were not 
developed for usc in valuing employee stock options. Under 
APB No. 25. because the exercise price of the Company-s 
employee stock options equals thc markct price of the under­
lying stock on the date of grant. no compensation expense is 
recognized in the Company's financial statements. 

Pro fOrIlla inronnation regarding nct incomc aod earnings per 
share is required by SFAS No. 123. This infonnation is required 
to be dctermined as if the Company had accounted for its em­
ploycc stock options (including shares issued under the Stock 
Part icipation Plan. collectively called "options") granted sub­
sequent to Dt-ccmber 31.1994 under the fair valuc mcthod of 
that statcmcnt. Thc fair value or options granted in 1995 and 
1996 reportcd below has been estimated at thc date of grant 
using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following 
.... -eighted avcrnge assumptions: _ft 

SIoct /lJnicipu1l0ll """- """"""" 
"" I,., "" "" Expccu:d life (in )'I.'WS) ••• G.' •• •• 

Risk-free mlC1CS1 rat~ 6.5" 8.8" "" 6.0'Mo 

Volatility .36 .36 .36 .36 

DIVidend yield .'" .'" .'" . '" 
The Black-Scholes option \'aluation model was developed for 

use in estimating the fair yo,due of traded options that havc no 
\!Cst ing TCStrictions and arc fully transferable. In addi tion. option 
valuation models require the input of highly subjective assump­
tions. including thc c;~pcctcd stock pricc volatili ty. Bccause the 

Company's options havc characteristics significant!y differe~t 
from those of traded options. and because changes 10 the subjeC­
ti\,e input assumptions can materially affec.t t~e fair \'3lue esti­
nUlIe. in thc opinion of management. the e:ustmg models do not 

neeess,,'lrily prm'ide 3 reliable single measure of the rair \'3lue 
of its options. The \\-eightoo a\'eragc estimated fair value of no­
ployce stock options granted during 1996 a~d 1995 ..... '35 532.69 
and 523.26 per share. respectively. The .... 'Clghted average estI­

mated raiT \'lI lue of shares granted under the Stock Panlcipauon 
Plan during 1996 and 1995 was 516.22 and SI2.25. respectively. 

For purposes of pro fonna discloslll1:S. the esumated fair ''lillie 
of the options is amortized to expense ovcr thc options' vesting 
period. nlC Comp..1ny·s pro fonna infonruuion follows (in mil­
lions except for earnings per share infonnation): 

,-~----c-cccc--------------------~/~";; I~' 
Pro forma net income S 5.Q.t6 S 3,.5011 
Pro forma earnings per share: S 5.68 S :1.16 

The effects on pro rorma disclosures of applying SFAS ~o_ 
123 are not likely to be representati,e of the effects on pro 
forma disclosures of future ycars. Because SFAS No. 123 is 
applicable only to options grnnted subsequent to Decembtt 31. 
1994. the pro romu effect will not be fully reflected unI111999, 

Kctire mcnl plans_ The Company provides ta.'t-qualified 
profit-sharing retirement plans (the "Qualified Plaos") ror the 
benefit or eligible employees m the U.S. and Puerto Rico and 
certain foreign countrics. The plans are designed to pt'O\'ilk 
cmployees with an accumulation of funds ror retIrement on I 
tax-dcferred basis and provide for annual discretiOO3l') contn­
but ions to trust funds. 

The Company also provides a non-qualified profit-shanng 
retirement plan (the -'Non-Qualified Plan") ror the benefit ordt­
gible employees in the U.S. This plan is designed to penmt m­
tain discTCtionary employer contnbullons in e'teess of the ta\ 

limits applicable to the Qualified Plans and to pcmut emplO)tt 
dcfermls in exccss of certnin 1.1X limits. This plan is unfunded 

The Company accrued $209 million for thc Qualified Plans 
and the Non-Qualified Plan in 1996 (S 188 million 10 1995 and 
SI52 million in 1994). or the S209 million accrued in 1996. the 
Company expects to fund appro:<imately SI81 million for the 
19% contribution to the Qualified Plans and to allocate apprml­
matcly SIO million for the Non-Qualified Plan. The rcmamdn. 
plus approximately Sin million carried forward rrom prior 
years. is cxpected 10 be contributed 10 these plans when al1~­
able under I RS regulatiOns and plan rules_ 

Contributions madc by the Company ,CSt based on the 
employee's years of service. Vest10g beglOS after thn!c )nI"S or 
service in 20% annual mercmcnts unlll the emplor,1."C is 100-,. 
vested after seven years . 

The Company pmo'ides tax-quahficd defined-benefit pcnsIOI'l 

plans for the benefit of eligible cmplo)'CCS in the U.S and Puerto 
Rico. Each plan provides ror mmimum pension benefits WI ~ 
dctennined by a participant's years of service. final a\C'rage 
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compensation (taking into account the participants social secu­
ri ty wage base) and the value of the Company's contributions. 
plus earnings, in the Qualified Plan. If the participants balance 
in the Qualified Plan exceeds the pension guarantee_ the panici­
pant will rccciw benefits from the Qualified Plan only. Inters 
funding policy is consistent with the fundi ng requirements of 
fcdeml laws and rcgultllions. 

Pension expense for 1996. 1995 and 1994 for the US. and 
Puerto Rico plans " 'liS less than $ 1 mil lion per year. and no 
component of c.~pense exceeded 53 mil lion. 

The funded StRlUS of thcsc plans as of December 28, 1996 and 
December 30, 1995 was as foll /)ws: 

(/It millioIu) /996 /99' 
Vested benffll obligation S (3) S {O{ 

Actumub ted btntflt obllg. tlon S {" S {" 

Projccted benefit obI ig.l1 ion S {5' S {6' 
Fair marlcet \'alue of plan a$SC1S " 8 

Proj«tcd ~fit obhgaltOll 1m INn plan mtts 6 , 
Unrf«l8nizcd lid (pin) (15) (12) 

Unreroglllzed poor KOice OO5t 3 3 

Aeerufli penJIOtI COSIJ S {" s {'I 

At fiscal year-ends, the weighted average discount rates and 
long-tenn rates for compensation increases used for estimating 
the benefit obligations and the expected return on plan assets 
were as fOIlO'A'§: 

" .. "" 199< 

Discount raIl' 7."" 7."" S 5" 
RaIl' of 1ncrea5C In 

compcnsaUOll 11.'\~ls 5.0% .,,. .. ,. 
Expected Iong·tmll relum 011 ISSets 8.5'" .. " .. " 

Plan assets of the US. and Pucrto Rico plans consist primar­
ily o f listed stocks and bonds. repurehase :agJ'I.'Cments, money 
m:arket securities. US. government securities and stock index 
derivatives. 

The Company provides defined-bcnefi l pension plans in CCT­
lain foreign countries where required by stalute. The Company's 
funding policy for foreign defined-benefit plans is consistent 
with the local requirements in each country. 

Pension expense for 1996. 1995 and 1994 for the foreign 
plans included the following: 

(lit ",lIIioM) '''' I '" 
Snvice cost-benefits earned 
duri!\i the )'QJ' S " S , S 

Inl~ cost or prtI:jeclcd 
benefit obhgalion 7 6 

AC1uallm-estmem (relum) 
on plan assets (14) {" 

Net amMUnition IlId defern.1 .. {7' 
Net JK'nslon UpeD~ • " • , S 

"" 
S 

5 

{8 ' 
3 

S 

p ". 

The funded Slatus of lhe fore ign defined-benefit plans as of 
December 28. 1996 and December 30, 1995 is swnmarizcd 
below: 

A~ A~ 
a ..... ItIU/(JII:Q 
~. "'"'ft. " .. mulaled <=01 

(Irt ItIil/HIfIS) ""- -\'I'c!itl'd bfnelit obl i~tion S {'" S {'I 

,\ ffUlllulated bfnelil obliga tion S {'" S (15) 

Projec1l'd hcndit obligll1ion S (62) • {73' 
Fair marlc et \lI luc of plan IlSSClS .. 3 

ProjtelW benefit obI lg.:Ilion I~ than 
(in excess of) plnn asscu 6 {20' 

Unrecogllized net lo;;s 3 3 

Unrecognized neltrallsition obli ga tion , 
Prfl,.Id (_ccrul'd j Ilension com S " S (HI) 

A= A=· 

'""""" mululed 
~- beMits ,.., mulaled <=01 

(llIlIfilliolu) 

""'""' ~" 
Vested benefit obUg_thln S {'" S {8' 
ACCU llIul i ted bfnefit obllg_ tlon S {'" S (14) 

Pn:J;cctcd benefit obIigalion S (62) S {72, 

Fair market \'lllue of plan anets 67 • 
Pro,caw baiefit obliphoo 

less than (m D:ce$S 00 plan assets 5 0" 
UnreroilllZcd 11ft 1055 • 5 

Unrecognized net tnlnSi tion obligation 2 

Pl'l'pl ld (afCrul'd j JK'n)kin co,n S " S ,,3) 

AI fisca l yca r~nds. the weighted average discount ratcs and 
long-lCrm mtes for compcnsalion increases used for cstimating 
the benefit obligations and the expected return on plan assets 
were as foll ows: 

/996 /99' /994 

Discoom rate 5.5%- 14% 5.5%--14% 5.5"'-14% 

Rate of increase in 
compensation Ie-.·els 4.5"'-11 '" 4.5%--11 % 4.5"'-11 % 

Exptc1ed long-term 
return on 15$f1J 5.5"'-14% 5.5"'-14% 5.5"'-14% 

Plan assets o f the foreign plans consist primarily of listed 
stocks. bonds and cash surrender value life insurance policies. 

Olher poslemploymenl benefit s. The Company has adopted 
SFAS No. 106. "Employers' Accounting for Postretirement 
Benefits Other Than Pensions," and SFAS No. 112. "Employers' 
Accounting for Postemployment Bencfits: 'lbcrc was no mater­
ial impac1 on the Company's financial statements for the periods 
presented. 

~ 



. ." 
Notes to consolidated financial statements 

Commitment. 
The Company leases a portion of its capital equipment and 

certain of its facilities under operating leases that expire at vari­
ous dates through 2011. Rcmal expense was 557 million in 
1996.538 million in 1995 and $38 million in 1994. Minimum 
rental commimlcnts under all oon-cancelable leases with an ini· 
tial leon in excess of one y~ar are payable as follows: 1997- 523 
million: 1998-$18 million; \999- $14 mill ion: 2000--51 t mil­
lion: 2001 59 million; 2002 and beyond- S25 mi ll ion. Com­
milmcnls for construction or purchase of property. plam and 
equipment approximated S 1.6 billion at December 28. 19%. In 
connection with certain manufacturing nrmngcments, Intel had 
minimum purchase commitments of approximately 5333 million 
nt December 28, 1996 for flash memories and other memory 
components and for production capacity of board-Ie-.'CI products. 

Contlngancla. 
In March 1995. EMf Group. N.A. (fonnerty known asThom 

EM I North America Inc.) brought suit in Federal Court in 
Oclaw'dl"C against Intel. alleging that cenain Intel manufacturing 
processes infringe a U.S. patent. In May 1996. the Coun granted 
Intel's motion for summary judgment on some of the processes 
in issue. In November 1996. the Coun granted Inters motion 
for summary judgment on the remaining processes in issue and 
entered judgment in favor of Intel and against EM I on the claims 
in E~II 's complaint. EMI has filed a Notice of Appeal with re­
spect to the Coun's decision. Although the ultimate outcome of 
this lawsuit cannot be detemlined at this time. management, 
including internal counsel. does not believe that the outcome of 
this litigation will ha\'C a material advCfSC effect on the Company's 
financial position or ovcrnll trends in results of operations. 

Intel has been named to the California and US. Superfund 
lists for three of its si tC5 and has completed along with two other 
companies. a RcmcdiallnvestigationIFcasibility study with the 
US. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to evaluate the 
groundwatcr in arcas adjacent to one of its fomler sites. The EPA 
has issued a Record of Decision with respect to a b'TOundwater 
cleanup plan al that site, including expected costs to complete. 
Undcr the California and US. Superfund statutes. liabili ty for 
cleanup of this site and the adjacent area is joint and several. The 
Company. however. has reached agreement with those same t .... ,o 

companies which significantly limits thc Company's liabilities 
under the proposed clcanup plan. Also. the Company has com­
pleted extensive studies at its other sites and is engaged in 
cleanup at several of these sites. In the opinion of management. 
including internal counsel. the potentiallosscs to the Company 
in excess of amounts already accrued arising out of these matters 
will not h.'we a material adverse effect on the Company's finan­
cial position or O\'crall trends in results of opemtions. even if 
joint and SC\cral liability were to be assessed. 

p 

The Company is party to various other legal proceedings. 
In the opinion of management. including internal counsel. 
these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on 
the financial position or overall trends in results of operations 
of the Comp.1l1y. 

The estimate of the potential impact on the Company's finan­
cial position or overall results of operations for the aboo.'c legal 
proceedings could change in the future. 

Indu.try .egment reporting 
Intel operates predominant ly in one industry segment. The 

Company designs. develops. manufactures and markets micro­
computer componcnts and relatcd products at various levels of 
integration. The Company sells its products directly to original 
equipment manufacturers (OEMs) and also to a network of 
indUStrial and retail distributors throughout the world. The 
Company's princip<ll markets are in the United States, Europe. 
Asia-Pacific and Japan. with the US. and Europe being the lar­
gest based on revenues. Thc Company's major products include 
microprocessors and related board-Icvcl products, chipsets. 
embedded processors and microcontrollcrs. flash memory chips. 
and network and communications products. Microprocessors 
and related board-IC\'C1 prodUCIS accQWII for a substantial major­
ity of the Company's net f"C\'CnuC5. No customer exceeded 10';, 
of revenues in 1996. 1995 or 1994. Summary balance sheet 
information for opcr.:ltions outside the United States at fiscal 
year-ends is as follows: 

(I .. ml/,WM) , ... "" A~ts S _.184 '_,01 
Total liabilities S 1,694 $ 1.661 

Net propcny. plant and equipmmt $ 1.615 $ 1,.14 

1 
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Notes to consolidated financial statements 
, 

GeogrJphie information for the three years ended December does not include an a llocation of general corporate expenses, 
28,1996 is presented in the followi ng tables. Transfers betwccn Ident ifiable assets are those thm ean be directly associated with 
geographic areas are accounted for at amounts that arc generally a pan icular geographic area. Corporate !lssets include cash and 
above cost and consistent with mles und regulations of govcrning cash equivalcnts. shon-ternl investments, trad ing assets. deferred 
tax authori ties. Such transfers are climinated in lhe consolidated tax assets, long-term investments and ccnain othe r assets. 
financial statements. Operating income by geographic segment 

Tmn.<fon 

(III .. lIlioN) ""r.. w .... ~ 
-"'"" 

grogropItic No Opooling IdetllifiohI~ 
1996 - - ~- i~ -United Stales S 8,668 S 9,846 S 18,514 S 5,255 S t2,982 

E"rope 5,876 917 6,793 1,11 8 2,405 

)'pan 2,459 20 2,479 340 65' 
Asia-llacific 3,844 2,004 5,848 509 1,361 
Other 8.5 865 529 359 
Eliminations (13,652) (13,652) . 53 (3,439) 
Corporate (651 ) 9,408 

Consolida ted $20,847 S $ 20,847 S 7,553 $ 23,735 

1995 

United States S 7,922 S 6,339 5 14,261 S 3,315 S 12,603 
Ewopo ,,560 1,190 5,750 1,383 2,517 

)'pan t,737 28 1,765 353 665 
Asia-llaciflc t ,983 1,566 3,549 271 893 
01hc, 684 684 410 329 
Eliminations (9,807) (9,807) 12. (3,651 ) 0 
Corporate (804) 4,1 48 

Consolida ted $ 18,202 S S 18,202 S 5,252 $ 17,504 

199' 
United States S 5,826 54,561 510,387 52,742 57,nl 

Europe 3,158 380 3,538 418 1,733 

Japan 94. ., 1,005 125 343 
Asia-raciflC 1,593 1,021 2,614 154 540 

Other 63' 63' 378 32. 
Eliminations (6,662) (6,662) 179 (1,878) 

Corporate (609) 4,983 

Consolida ted S 11,521 S $11 ,521 S 3,387 $13,818 

Supplemental Information (unaudited) 
Quanerly inrormation for the two years ended December 28, 1996 is presented on page 31. 
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Report of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors 

The Board of Directors and 
Stockholders, Intel Corporation 

We have audi ted the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
of Intel Corporation as of December 28, 1996 and December 
30, 1995, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
stockholders' equity. and cash flows for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 28.1996. These financial state. 
ments are the responsibility of the Company's management. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with gencral1y accepted 
auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and per_ 
form the audi t to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supponing the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial sta tements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and sig. 
nificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 

the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion. the consolidated financial statements referred 
to above present fairly. in all material respects. the consolidated 
financial position of Intel Corporation at December 28.1996 
and December 30. 1995, and the consolidated results of its 
opcrJtions and its cash flows for each of the three years in the 
period ended December 28.1996, in coofonnity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

$.1n Jose, Califomia 
JanuaryI3.1997 
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Financial summary 

'. 

Ten Year. Ended December a8, 1996 

II'ctlmV:SIIllt'tl' AddirWM ,. """""", Long.,,,,,,, ~"". /0 proptTf)! 
pia", & T.,.. "rid"., """"'. pia",d 

(I" "d/liofU) -, ~ .~ equity ""'-1996 S 8,487 S 23,735 S 1,003 S 16,872 S 3,024 
1995 S 7,471 S 17,504 S 1,125 S 12,140 S 3,550 
1994 S 5,367 S 13,816 S 1,136 S 9,267 S 2,441 
199J S 3,996 S 11,344 S 1,114 S 7,500 S 1,933 
1992 S 2,816 S 8,089 S 622 S 5,445 S 1,228 
1991 S 2,163 S 6,292 S 503 S 4,418 S 948 
1990 S 1,658 S 5,376 S 345 S 3,592 S 680 
1989 S 1,264 S 3,994 S 412 S 2,549 S 422 
1988 S 1,122 S 3,550 S 479 S 2,080 S 477 
/987 S 891 S 2,499 S 298 S 1,276 S 302 

R,'""" [)j,'i<fettds 
N" COSIo{ & rk>'I'I· 0p0u11"1l N .. t EDmi"tIS dec/alt'll 

(I" ""II~ pw u..- fIIftOtIUUS) m~_ win .,.,." I~ i~ prrSM"" ,..",,~ 

1996 S 20.647 S 9,164 S 1,808 S 7,553 S 5.157 S 5.81 S ,19 

1995 S 16,202 S 7,811 S 1,296 S 5,252 S 3,566 S 4.03 S ,15 
1994 S 11 ,521 S 5,576 S 1,111 S 3.387 S 2,288 S 2.62 S .115 
199J S 8,782 S 3,252 S 97. S 3,392 S 2.295 S 2." S .1. 
1991 S 5,844 S 2,557 S 780 S 1,490 S 1,067 S 1.24 S ,OS 
1991 S 4,n9 S 2,316 S .18 S 1,080 S 81' S ,98 
1990 S 3,921 S 1,930 S 517 S 858 S ... S ,80 
1989 S 3.127 S 1,721 S 365 S 557 S 391 S .52 C 198B S 2,875 S 1,506 S 318 S 594 S 453 S .63 
1987 S 1,907 S 1,044 S 280 S 246 S 248 S .34 
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Result. of operations 

I ntel posted record net revenues in 1996. for the tenth conse· 
cutive year. rising by 29010 from 1995 to 1996 and by 41% 

from 1994 to 1995. Higher volumes of the rapidly ramping 
Pemium ' microprocessor family. panially offset by 10\\'Cr 
processor prices and decreased fC\'enues from sales of related 
board-level products. were responsible for most of the gn)\\1h 
in revcnues from 1995 to 19%. The Pcmium" Pro micropro­
cessor f.1mily, introduced in late 1995, also comributed to the 
growth in revenues from 1995 to 1996. The growth in revcnues 
from 1994 to 1995 was driven primarily by higher volumes 
of tile Pent ium processor family and relatcd board-level 
products. which surpassed sales of the I nte 1486~ micropro­
cessor family in thc third quancr of 1995. Revenues from the 
Intel486 microprocessor family declined substantially in 1995 
and 1996, primarily due to this shin in market demand toward 
the Company's more advanced microprocessors. 

Iligher volumcs of flash memory and chipsct products also 
contributed toward the increase in revenues from 1994 to 1996 
and also helped enable the successful Pentium and Pentium 
Pro microprocessor ramps. Revenues from embedded COnlrol 
products and nctworking and communications products also 
grew over this period. 

Cost of sales increased by 17% from 1995 to 1996 and by 
4()O/o from 1994 to 1995. The O\'erall gffi\\1h in cost of sales 
from 1994 to 1996 was driven by unit volume growth in 
Pentium microprocessor and related board-level products. new 
factories commencing production. manufacturing process COIl­
\'Crsions and shifts in product mix. While revenues increased 
substantially from 199510 1996. growth in cost ofsalcs was 
significantly less. Cost of sales in the first half of 1996 and thc 
founh quancr of 1995 were negatively impactoo by unusually 
high rescrves relmcd to invcntories of cenain purchased com­
ponents. The second half of 1996 was favorably impacted by 
factory cfficiencies from higher volumes, as well as relatively 
lower new factory startup costs. In addition, in the second 
half of 1996 the Company sold significantly more processor 
products than in thc second half of 1995. 

Revenues and Income 
(/)oJ/ar:s ilf billians) 

.. 

p 

The gross margin pereentage was 56% in 1996. compared 
to 52% in 1995 and 1994. Howe\·er. as a result of all of the 
revenue and cost factors discussed above, the gross margin per. 
centagc in the second half of 1996 was 60% (63% in the founh 
quarter). compared to 50% in the second halfof 1995 (480/, in 
the founh quaner). Gross margin for the founh quaner of 1994 
included the imp.1ct ofa $475 million charge, primarily to cost 
of sales. related to a divide problem in the floating point unit of 
the Pentium microprocessor. See "Outlook" for a discussion of 
gross margin expectations. 

Sales of Pentium microprocessors and related board·level 
products comprised a majority of the Company's revenues and 
a suhstanlial nllljority of its gross margin during 1995 and 1996. 
During 1996 Pentium Pro microproccssors and relatoo board­
level products bccume an increasing panion of the Company's 
revenucs and gross margin. The Intcl486 microprocessor family 
contributed negligible revenues and gross margin during 1996. 
During 1995, the Intel486 microprocessor family represemcd 
a significant but rapidly declining portion of the Company's 
revenues and gross margin. whi le it comprised a majority of 
the Company's revenues and a substantial majority of its gross 
margin during 1994. 

Research and development spending grew by 4()O/, from 1995 
to 1996 and 17% from 1994 to 1995. as the Company substan­
tially increased its investments over this time period in strategic 
programs. paniculnrly for the inlernal development of m)cropro­
ccssor products and rclated manufacturing technology. Increased 
spending for marketing programs, including media merchan­
dising and the Company's Intel Inside' cooperntive ad\ertislng 
progrnm. and other l'e\enue-dependent expenses droo.oe the 26-,.. 
and 27% increases in marketing, general and administrati\c 
expenses from 1995 to 1996 and from 1994 to 1995. respccti\'Cly. 

Thc 54 million decrease in interest cxpense from 1995 to 
1996 was mainly due to lower average borrowing balances and 
interest rates in 1996. partially offset by 1000'Cr interest CIlpital. 
ization. The decrease in interest expense from 1994 to 1995 
was primarily due to lower average borrowing balances in 1995 
in addition to higher interest capitalization resulting from 
increased facility construction programs. 

n 

Coat. and expenses 
(IYrn-IfI of r'rI'l'lfun) 

n 



. '" 

M t ' d " " d I· 0 1 tlnnncia l cond. t .on anagemen S ISCUSSlon an ana YSIS ondro .. ... . . . o l oporotlons 

Although the Company had higher average investment halan­
(:cs in 1996. interest and other income decreased by 59 million 
from 1995 to 1996, primarily due to the offsetting effect of 5118 
million in unusual gains in 1995. Interest and other income 
increased by 5142 million from 1994 to 1995, mainly duc to 
the previously noted gains in 1995. in addition 10 higher average 
interest rates on investments in 1995. 

The Company utilizes investments and corresponding interest 
rate SWlIpS to preserve principal while enhancing the yield on ils 
investment ponfolio without significnrlliy increasing risk. and uses 
forward contracts. options lind swaps to hedge foreign currency, 
equity and interest rale market exposures of underlying assets. 
liabilities and other obligations. Gains and losses on these instru­
ments arc generally offset by those on the underlying hedged 
transactions; as u result, there wus no material net impaet on 
the Company's financial results during the 1994 to 1996 period. 

The Company's effective income tax rate decrcased to 35.(1'.4 in 
1996 compared to 36.8% and 36.5% in 1995 and 1994, rcspcctl\-cly. 

Financial condition 

Thc Company's financial condition remains vcry Strong. As 
of December 28. 1996. total cash and short- and long-tenn 

im'CStments totaled $9.3 billion. up from $4.1 billion at Decem­
ber 30, 1995. Cash gener:ucd from operating activities rose to 
$8.7 billion in 1996, compared to $4.0 billion and 52.9 billion 
in 1995 and 1994. respectl\'~Iy. 

Investing acti\ilies consumed $5.3 billion in cash during 1996. 
compared 10 $2.7 billion during 1995 and $2.9 billion during 
1994. as oper3ling aClivilies gcnemled significantly more cash 
during 1996. Capilal eJCpcnditures tOlaled 53.0 billion in 1996. 
as !he Company cominued 10 invesl in property, planl and equip­
memo primarily for microprocessor manufaclUring capacity. 
The Company had commillcd upproximotcly S 1.6 billion for 
the construction or purchase of property. plant and equipment 
as of [)c(:enlber 28, 1996. Sec "Outlook" for a discussion of 
capital expenditure cxpccllltions in 1997. 

11I\'Cntory !co.·cls. particularly raw materials and finished goods. 
decreased significantly in 1996. This decrease was primarily 
anribul3ble to the sell.through of purchased pans inventory and 
10\\'ef costs of lI1.1nufOCluring. The increase in accoums receivable 

Other Income and expen.e 
(DoI1o~ in ",illiDfl$j 

p o .. 

in 1996 was mainly due to revenue growth, offset somewhat by 
improved receivable collections. During 1995. the Company 
cxpcricnCl..'d an increase in its concentration of credit risk due 
to increasing trndc receivables from sales to manufacturers of 
microcomputer systems. Ahhough the financ ial exposure to 
individwtl customers has increased with the growth in TCVCflues, 
the concentration of credit among the largesl customers has 
decrcased slightly in 1996. The Comp.1ny·s five largest customers 
accounted for approximately 30% of net revenues for 1996. At 
Deccmber 28.1996. these customers accounted for approxi. 
mmely 25% of nct accounts receivable. 

Thc Company used $773 mill ion for fina ncing activities in 
1996. compared to $1.1 billion and $557 mill ion in 1995 and 
1994, respectivcly. The rmtior financ ing applications of cash in 
1996 and 1995 were for stock repurehascs totaling S 1.3 bi llion 
for 16.8 mi llion shares (including S 108 million for cxcreised 
put warrants) and S 1.0 billion for 18.9 million shares, respec­
tl\'cly. Finuncing applications of cash in 1994 included stock 
repurchases ofS658 million and the carly retirement of the 
Company's 8'/1% debt. Financing sources of cash during 1996 
includcd 5300 million under a private reverse repurchase 
arrangement and 5261 million in proceeds from the sale of 
shares primarily pursuarltlO employee Stock plans (S 192 million 
in 1995 and $150 million in 1994). 

As part of its authorized stock repurchase program, the 
Company had outstanding put warrants at the end of 1996. 
with the potential obligation to buy back 4.5 million shares of 
its Common Stock at an aggregate price ofS275 million. The 
exercise price of these warrants ranged from S56 to 569 per 
share, with an average cxercise price ofS61 per share as of 
December 28.1996. 

Other sources of liquidity include combined credit lines and 
authorized commercial paper borrowings of S 1.8 bil lion. $30 
million of which was outstanding at December 28, 1996. The 
Company also maintains the ability to issue an aggregate of 
approximately S 1.4 billion in debt. equity and other securities 
under Securities and Exchangc Commission (SEC) shelf 

Ca.h and Inva.tment. 
(DoIIIJT$;~ bill/ml.l) 
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registration statements. 'The Company believes that it has the 
financial resources nceded to meet business requirements in 
the foreseeable future, including capital expenditures for the 
expansion of worldwide manufacturing capacity, working 
capital requirements. the potential put warrant obligation 
and the dividend program. 

Outlook 

The outlook section contains a number of forward-looking 
statements, all of which are based on current expectations. 

Actual results may differ materially. 
Intel expects that the total number of personal computers 

using Intel's Pentium and Pentium Pro microprocessors and 
other semiconductor components sold ",'Orldwide will continue 
to grow in 1997. Intel has expanded manufacturing capacity 
over the last few years and continues to expand capacity. Intel's 
financial results are substantially dependent on this market seg­
ment. Revenue is also a function of the mix of microprocessors 
and related motherboards and the mix of microprocessor types 
and speed al1 of which are difficult to forecast. Because of the 
large price difference between types of microprocessors. this 
mix affects the average price Intel will realize and has a huge 
impact on Intel's revenues. 

Intel's strategy has been. and continues to be. to introduce ever 
higher performance microprocessors. To implement this strategy. 
the Company plans to cuhivlIIc new businesses and continuc to 
won: with the software industry to develop compelling applica­
tions that can take advantage of this higher perfonnance. thus 
driving demand toward the nev.'CT products. In line with this 
strategy. the Company has recently announccd highcr perfor­
mance members of the Pentium microprocessor family. including 
the Pentium processor with MMX~ tednology. Capacity has 
been planned based on the assumed continued success of thc 
Company's strategy. Ifthc man:et demand docs not continue to 
grow and move rapidly toward higher performance products, 
revcnues and gross margin may be impacted, the manufacturing 
capacity installed might be under-utilized and capital spending 
may be slowed. The Company may continue 10 reduce micro­
processor prices aggressively and systematically to bring 
its technology to market. 

The Company's gross margin percentage is a sensitive function 
of the product mixes sold in any period. Because the percentage 
of motherboards that Intel's customers purchase changes with 
the maturity of the product cycle. and motherboards generally 
ha'>e lower gross margin percentages than microprocessors, 
Intel's gross margin pereentage varies depending on the mix 
of microprocessors and related motherboards within a product 
family and the mix of types of microprocessors. Various othcr 
factors. including unit \ulumcs and costs, and yield issues ass0-

ciated with production at factories. processor speed mix and 
mix of shipments of other semiconductors. will also continue 
to affect the amount of cost of s.11es and the variability of gross 
margin percentages in future quaners. The Company's goal con· 
tinul'S to be to grow gross margin dollars. Inters current gross 

margin expectation for 1997 is 6()OA. plus or minus a few POints. 
1·lowevcr, the Company believes that over the long-tenn the 
gross margin pcrcemage will be 50% plus or minus a fClA' POints. 
as the Company introduces higher perfonnance products and 
costs continue to increase. In addition, from time to time tht 
Company may forecast a range of gross margin percentages f« 
the coming qu.'U1cr, Actual results may differ fiom these estimates.. 

To implement its strategy. Intel continues to build capacity 10 
produce higb-pcrfonnance microprocessors and other products. 
The Company expects that capital spending will increase to 
approximately $4.5 billion in 1997 to suppan significant expan­
s ion of worldwide manufacturing capacity. This spending plan is 
dependent upon chnngcs in manufacturing effiCiencies. delivtry 
times of various m:lchincs and construction schedules for new 
f.1cilitics. Depreciation for 1997 is expected to be approximately 
$2.5 billion. an increase of approximatt'ly S600 million from 
1996. Most of this increased depreciation would be mctuded 
in cost of s.,'lles and research and development spendmg. 

The industry in '" hleh Intel operates is charactenzed by \~ 
shon product life cycles. Intel considers it imperatf\c to main­
tain a strong research and development program to continue to 

succeed. The Company'" ill also conunue spmding to promoIt 

its products and to increase Ihe value of its product brands. 
Bast.-d on current foll!C3Sts. spending for marloeting and genmI 
and administrative expenses IS expected to increase in 1997. 

The Company currently ell:pec:ts its tax rate to Increase to 
35.5% for 1997. This estimate is based on CUrTem laX Ia\.1.' and 
CUrTent estimale of earnings. and is subject to change_ 

The Company's future results of operations and the other 
forward-looking statements contained m this outlook. 10 panlC'llbr 
the statcmcnts regarding growth in the personal computer indus­
try. gross margin. capital spending. dcpreciation, research and 
dl."Velopment, and markcting and gencral and administmmc 
expenses. involve a number of risks and uncenainllcs. In addl' 
tion to the factors discussed above, among the other f3cto~ that 
could cause actual results to diffcr materially are the follo'A'tng: 
business conditions and growth in the computing IOdusuy and 
in the general economy; changt's in customer order patterns. 
including timing of delivery and changes in scasonall1uctua· 
tions in PC buying panems; competitive factors. such as ri\-aI 
chip architectures. competing software-compalible micropro­
cessors. acceptance of new products and pnce pressu~; ns.k 
of inventory obsolescence due to shifts in market demand; 
variations in imentory valuation: tlmmg ofsoft .... art IndUSU}' 
product introductions: continued success in technological 

advances and their implememation. Including the maoufactunng 
ramp: shonage of manufacturing capacity: risks associated .... lIla 
foreign opemtions: changes in product mixes: and litigation 
involving intcllcctual property and consumer issues. 

Intel believes that it has the product offerings. facilities. per_ 
sonnel. and competitive and financial TCSOW'Ces for conttnued 
business success. but future revenues, costs. margms and profits 
lire atl influenced by a number of factors. includmg those dIS' 
cussed above. all of which are inherently difficult to forecast. 
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(/~ milliOfU acrpI PfT .MaTI' Jul .. ) 

1998 for quarter ended /)1'CI'mi:>er 28 St'p/('mi><'T 28 JlIm' 29 A/Qrrn )0 

Nct ("C\'cnues S 6,440 S 5 ,142 S 4,621 S 4,644 

Cost of sales S 2,392 S 2,201 S 2.150 S 2,421 

Net income S 1,910 S 1,312 S 1,041 S 894 

Earnings per share S 2,13 S 1.48 S 1.17 S 1.02 

Dividends per share'"" Declared S .05 S .os S .os S .04 
Paid S .os ·s .05 S .04 S .04 

Market price range Common S4ock '·' lI igh $ 137.50 $ 97.38 S 76.88 S 61.00 

Low S 95.44 S 69.00 S 56.88 S 50.00 
Market price range Step-Up Warrants''' l'ligh $ 98.38 $ 58.88 S 39.31 S 28.50 

Low S 56.75 S 31.75 S 24.00 S 21.63 

(Til m,1/1OIIS -o«pl prr JNm. tkJ, .. , 

19915 for quarter ended ,-'" -""'"'" July I April I 

Net revenues S 4,580 S 4 ,171 S 3,894 S 3,557 

Cost of sales S 2,389 S 2,008 S 1,805 S 1,609 

Net income S 867 S .31 S 87' S 88. 
Earnings per share S ... S 1.05 S .99 S 1.02 

Dividends per share'" Declared S .04 S .04 S .04 S .03 

P'J id S .04 S .04 S .03 S .03 
Market price range Common Siock lI igh S 72.88 S 76.44 S 65.63 S 44.25 

Low S 56.75 S 58.63 S 42,75 S 31.81 

Market price range Step-Up Warmnts''' High S 39.00 S 43 .63 S 31 .88 S 11.91 

Low S 26.75 S 30.44 S 11.31 S 6.97 G 
' •• IIIld pIlltU '" C\1fI/JIIW lIS d .. 'fIktt;J progrwtt. 11,-"",",", dntdmtb __ dq>mtJmt _ juNl't ~. CfIPIWI ff'fIU'lT1ffI."IIU Wtd fo-triaI cr-'i/icft . 

• '/II/d ~ C_ .SOod: (s)"MboI IVT'CJ Wtd 1998 SIq1-f.;p Hi>m:mb (n ... bo/ I.\T(""IJ J /JtJtk (.r nw f,.uduq Sfod: M .. IVI ' flM fUr q-.J 1/1 1M ""'all Stn'C1 .IoumaI tmd 
otMr _"JfIfIP"J. I~tfti C __ SIOd- fl/W InMks _1M 7...nrl1. Basrl flnJ GnI"". Slnt:~nJ~. All:Jt!noWlbt:r 111.19906. 111m.- ....... .. ppmT;millr/y /OJ.OOO 
~fnnl "QId~ ofCCNfImQII Stock. AII.f/od ""d " "mllIl pn= "" dMJIIg prl<!Q p" 1M N~ Stod },("r/q-, 
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F. Thonuu Dunla p. Jr. Stl'phl'n ~ Nachl.sheim OI:sktop Marlcetmg 
Chainnan Vice Pres.ident Vkc Pn."Sidenl 
Arbor Corponllion Gordon E. Moon' Gcncrol COWlSCI and General Manager. RichardA. ~ullcur 
,oj Ii"'ited purtrwnllip Chairman of the Boord "''"''''> Mobile/Handheld Vice President 

Audn'w S. Gro,·e 
Products Group Fi~ 

Max Pall'\·s kr l~· Kirb) A. 1l)"t'Ss 
Intel ArchllectuR: ~ 

G IndUlill'ialist President and Vice President Ronald J , Smith 
Chief Executive Officer Director. Internet and Vice President NobuyukJ ~nd. 

Arthur Rock I'! J" Communications Group General Manager. Vtce President 
PriQl;ipal of Arthur Rock Craig R. 8arrell New Business Computing Sales and 
and Company Executive Vice President Dc\·elopmcnt Enhancement Group Markellng Group 
,oj ''lmturr rnpItul firm and ChiefOpcrating 

ExttulI\'e Vice President. Officer Canene M. Ellis Anind Sodha ni Japan Operouons Ja nl' E.Shaw l: Vice President Vice President 
Founder. Frank C. Gilt Director, Information Treasurer luther G. Oisne, 
lbc Stable Network Executive Vice President Tcehnology ViC(' President 
A blop/rurmaco.'IIrirol General Manager, Michael R. Spli nter Technology and 
rottSltlting rom(X"'J' Internet and Pat rick I'. Cl'lsingcr Vice President Manufactunng Group Commwtications Group Vice President Assistant General 
Leslie L, VadJl5"I: Gencral Manager. Manager, Technology and 

Director. 
Senior Vice President l'1Iul S. Oll'lIini Desktop Products Group ManufllClUring Group 

Corporate Serm:n 
DircctOT. Corporote Exceutive Vice President 
Business Development DiT'l.'C"!or, Sales and lIMns G. Ceyer A~polnt.d 

Edwa nl I). Ekstrom 

Marileting Group Vice President o leers Vice President 
Oa,·id 8. YoRie r. General Manager, intemclaOO 
Max and Doris Starr Gerhanl U. Parker FrankAlnln'l CommunlCatlOll5 Group European Operotions Vice President Professor of International Executh-c Vice President General Managl."l'". 
Business Administrotion Ocncral Manager. Thomas L, lIogu(' Technology and Systems Management 
Harvard Business Sehool Technology and Vice President 

Manufacturing Group Dl\olsion 
Manufacturing Group Din.'CIor, Materials 

Gcncrnl Manager, 
Strotegic Components Youssef A. E"'lans} 

Lesl ie L VadaS-l! lIarold E. Uughes. Jr. Manufactunng Vice President 
Senior VICe President Vice President 

Rolx>r1 J , Bak('r 
Technology and 

Director, Corporote Di~tor, Planning and Manufactunng Group 
Business Dc\'Clopment Logistics 

Vice f'rcsi<knt Director. Portland 
Technology and Technology [)e,.·elopment 

Ronald J, Whittier Manufacturing Group 

Senior Vice Presidenl Geneml Manager, 

Generol Manager. MicropfOl;($S()T 

Content Group Components 
Manufaetunng 
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'lieh~l"l J. Fisltr Michael C. Maibach J)nid I\orhllUlIl"r t:arl L. WhNSIOnl" l'tler n. MacWilliams 
Vice Presidenl Vice I'rcsidrnl Vice Presiden. Vice I'resident Desktop ProduclS Group 
M icl"OJ"'fOCCSSOl" GO'o'Cnlm(:m Affairs Microproccs.sor Sales and Dim:tor. Platform 
ProduclS Group Products Group Markcling Group Architoclure 
Gcocnl Manager. Scoan M. ~1Mlone) General Manager. Israel General Mnnager. 
\Ii~ Di\'ision 6 Vice President De\'clopmelll CentCT European OpcrJtions l>aul D. Madland 

Sales and Microprocessor 
Do\ FrohlllMn Marteling Group Willialll B. l'ohlmMn .Iames II . Vasso ProdUCtS Group 
\rlt"e I'n:sidcnt Groeral Manager. Vice President Vice PTcsident Director. Circuil 
Micl"OJ"'f"OCOSOf Asia·l'acific Opcratioos Computing Desktop Products Group Tcrhnology 
ProduclS Group Enhancement Group General Man3gl"'. 
Gencml Manager. ])M\ id n . ~larsing General Mallag<.,.. Central RescUer Products EUJ,:l"nc S. i\leieran 
Israel Operations Vice President Logic Engineering Division Teehnology and 

Technology and Manufacturing Group 
William O. lIowe MllIlllfocturing Group I'Mmela L.l'oll ac~ Feno __ Director. Manufacturing 
Vice President Geneml Manager. Vice President Stmtegie Support 
Computing A.'ISCmblyrrcst 5.1les and GI1'l,tOI'Y E.t\ twllod 
Enhancement Group Manuf.1cluring Markcting Group TL'<:hnologyand f"l1'derick J . l'olJad. 
General Manager. Dim:tor. Worldwide Munufilcturing Group Microprocessor 
MemOl)' Componcnts ,"' rankA. McCa1H' Press Relations Dim:tor. Flash Products Group 
01\ isioll Vice I'resident Memory Architecture Director. Measun:mcnt. 

Technology and Will iam 1\1. Siu ArchiteclUn: and Planning 
Jam" W. Jar",!! ManufaclUring Group Vice Presidem i\lark T. l!uhr 

President Gcncrol Manager. T crhoology and Tl.'Choology and Justin R. Ranner 
Intd PRC Corporation Ireland Operations Ml\nufacturing Group Manufacturing Group Enterprise Serwr Group 

Director. Assembly Din.'Ctor. Process Director. Server 
Rober1 \I. Jecmen SIl"\l"n I). McCrady Tcrhnology nc..ciopmem Archucctun: and Architecture Lab 
Vice President Vice President Integration 
Technology and Internet and Jon E Slusser Uri C. Welser 
Manufacturing Gnlup Communications Group Vice President Robert I'. Coh.rll ~Iicroproccssor 

DIrector. California Director. Sirattgy Technology and M il:roprot:l'SSOf Products Group 
Technology and Manufacturing Group ProdUCtS Group Dlm:tor. Israel 
ManufaclUnng Palnei ll "'urnt) Director. COJl)Omtc Director.IA·)2 nc..·clopment Center 

Vice President Quality Ne!\\urk Architecture Arch,teclure 
James 8 . Johnson Human Resources 
Vice I'resldent Director. Stephen L. Smith RIchard L. Coul!;6n Rk hard 8. Wirt 
Intcmet and Human Resources Vice President Desktop I'rodllCts Group Microprocessor 
Communications Group Microprocessor Oil"l.'<:tor. I 0 Architt'CtuTC ProductS Group 
General Manager. Ikllo Nbhioka Products Group Director. 
Inlemet $en'ietS Vice Presidem GCrK.'fl11 Mallager. Jllhu II . Crllwfllrd MicrocomputCT Labs 
Opcr:1I10n Sales and Santa Clara Processor Microprot:c)sor 

fo,'larketing Group Division Products Group teo I). Yau 
Patrick S. JOlies President. DiTl.'Ctor. Micropmce>sor Tcrhnology and 
Vice President Japan Operations WIIII>IIII /\. S'\upe ArchitcclUrc Manufacturing Group 
Finance Vicc Presidcnt Director. IIlflO'I-'lUivc 
CorpomlC Controller Boon Chyl" 001 Desklop Products Group 1'>1010 A. GflI1,:Jnl Tcrhoology Modules 

Vice l'resldent Director. Busincs.s Technology and 

Claudr M. Uglist Technology and Desktop Markcting Manufacturing Group lal1 A. Young 
Vice Prcsldem Manufac1unng Group Director. Technology and 
Contcnt Group General Manager. Krnnefh 1\1. Thompson Technology Slrutcgy ManufoclUring Group 
Du"CClor. Entcrtamntcnll Systems Manufacruring Vice President Director. Advalll;ed 
Educalioo 1k\-e1oper Techoology and 

Ke>ln C. Kyhn Circuit and Tecllnology 
Relauoos JM(ob A. f't'ila. Jr. Manufacturing Group Intemct and Intcgtation 

Vice PresIdent General Manager. Communica\lons Group 

Bruce II. Lrlslna; Technology and Technoiosy DIrector. 

VtcC President Manufacturing Group Manufacturing Communications 
Technology and General Manager. Engineering Inrrastrocture Lab 

Manufaclunng Group I'hihppme Operations 
,":lI('n R. KOllar General Manager. Keith L. Thomson 

~phera.1 Components Rol}frt II . f't'rll11 l n Vice Presidenl Sales and 

ManurllCturing VlCC President Technology and Man-eting Group 

Finance Manufacluring Group DIrector. Corporate 

Director. Tax. Oregon Sue Manager Stmtegic Markcllng 

Customs and Licensing 
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Investor information 

Inva.tor material. 
For investor inronnation. including additional annual reports. 

IO-Ks. Io-Qs or any other financia l litcmture. please contact 
Harris Trust & Savings Bank in the U.S. at (800) 298-0146 or 
(312)461-5545: or the Company in Europe: (44) 1793403000: 
in Iiong Kong: (852) 2844-4555: and in Japan: (81) 298-47-8511. 

Intel on Na.daq 
Intcrs Common Stock and 1998 Step-Up Warrants trade 

on The Nas<i.1q Stock Market' under the symbols INTC and 
INTCW. respectively. 

Intal on the Internet 
Intcl's homc pagc 011 the World Wide Web contains back­

ground on the Comp..1ny and its products. financial information. 
job listings and our :mimatcd online annual repon, as well as 
other userul in rormation, Specific information of interest to 
investors can be round at www.intc.com. 

Dividend relnve.tment program 
Inters Dividend Reimcstment Program allows stockholders 

to reinvcst dividends and contribwc additional cash to purchase 
Intel Common Stock on an occasional or momhly basis. 
For more infonnation. call intcrs transrer agent. Harris Trust 
& Sa\'ings Bank. al (800) 298-0 146 or (312) 461-5545. 

T'ranefer agent and regletrar 
Ilarris Trust & Savings Bank. 311 West Monroe. P.O. Box 

A350·t Chicago. IL 60690-3504. Stockholders and \\'llrrant­
holders may call (800) 298-0146 or (312)461 -3309 with any 
questions regarding transrcr or ownership or Intel stock and 
warrants. 

•• T. 

Independent audlto,.. 
Ernst & Young LL P. San Jose. Calirornia. 

Environmental, health and .afety 
This was an outstanding year ror Intel in reducing injuries 

to employees in the workplace. O\'Cr the past three years. Imel 
has reduced the recordable injury rate 68 percent and the 1051-
day case Tale 75 percent. Injury rates ror new-construction con­
tractors during the same pcriod have been reduced by 80 perren!. 

Intc!'s Cmig Barrclt and Carol Browner. administmtor orthe 
U.S. Environmenlal Protection Agency. signed an agreement 
ror Imcrs Project XL(cXcelience and Leadership) for Fab 12 in 
Chandler. Ari7..ona. Project XL is a key componem ofPrcsident 
Climons vision of"rcgulalOry rcinvemioll"to promote supe­
rior environmental performance with more community parti­
cipalion and lower administrative COSIS. 

Please sec our Envirol/lllelllul. Health ami SafelY al Imel 
report at www.intcl.comtilltcllotherehslindex.htm. For a printt'd 
copy. call (800) 753-9754 extension 348. or (847) 296-9333 
extension 348. 

Workplace of choice 
We strive to be a workplace of choice in which people or 

dh'crsc backgrounds are valued challenged acknowledged and 
rewarded. leading to increasingly higher levels of fulfillment 
and productivity. For more infonnation. see our 1I00000act' of 
Clloi« repon at www.intel.com intel community. workplace. 





United ala._ .nd c.n_. 

Intel Corponlll ion 
Robe" Noyce Building 
2200 Mission College BoulC\wd 
P,O. Box 58119 
Santa Clara. CA 95052-8119 
USA 
Phone: (800) 628-8686 

Europe 

Intel Corporation (UK) Ltd. 
Pipers Way 
Swindan 
Wiltshire SN) I RJ 
UK 

Phone: 
England 
Germany 
Fraocc 
I •• 
Israel 
NelherlarK!s 

S.""" 

(44) 179) 403000 
(49) 89 9914) 0 
()l) 14571 7l7l 
()9) 2 575 441 
(J72) 2 589 711 1 
(31) 102866111 
(46) 8 70S 5600 

_,.-P.ot,to 

Infel St>mlcondUffor Ltd. 
32/ F"TWo J>aeifie Place 
88 Qucensway. CenUllI 
lIongKong 

Phone: (852) 2844 4555 

.... ~n 
Intel KIIbuihlkl KIIlshl 
P.o. Box lIS Tsukuba-g.akuen 
S-6 Tokodai. Tsukuba·shi 
lbaraki-kcn JOS 
Japan 

Phone: (81) 298 47 8522 

"'uth Amartoa 
Inlel SemlcondulOre5 dO BrnJI 
Rue Florida. 1703-2 arK! CJ22 
CEP04565'OOI Sao Paulo-SP 
Brazil 

Phone: (55) II 550S 2296 
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To Iflm mo~ about Intel Corporation, 
\'i5it our slie on tile WOrid WlOt Woo 
II wOI-OI.inttl.com 
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